
 
 
 

Pensions Committee 
 
Date: Monday, 19 September 2011 
Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
Contact Officer: Pat Phillips 
Tel: 0151 691 8488 
e-mail: patphillips@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 27 June, 2011. 

 
3. ACCOUNTS 2010-11  
 
 To be circulated separately. 

 
4. AUDIT COMMISSION ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT (Pages 11 

- 32) 
 
5. MEMBERS' TRAINING DAY (Pages 33 - 42) 
 
6. LAPFF CONFERENCE BOURNEMOUTH (Pages 43 - 44) 
 
7. LGPS UPDATE (Pages 45 - 60) 
 
8. ANNUAL EMPLOYERS' CONFERENCE (Pages 61 - 64) 
 
9. BANK AND OTHER AUTHORISED SIGNATORIES (Pages 65 - 70) 
 
10. DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT  
 
 To be circulated separately. 

Public Document Pack



 
11. PROFESSIONAL PENSIONS AWARDS (Pages 71 - 74) 
 
12. TUNSGATE SQUARE SHOPPING CENTRE 'GREEN APPLE' 

AWARD (Pages 75 - 78) 
 
13. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND VOTING  
 
 To be circulated separately. 

 
14. AUTO ENROLMENT  
 
 To be circulated separately. 

 
15. ACADEMIES  
 
 To be circulated separately. 

 
16. ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - MACK TRADING (Pages 79 - 

82) 
 
17. TAYLOR SHAW - REPORT  
 
 To be circulated separately. 

 
18. IMWP MINUTES  
 
 To be circulated separately. 

 
19. GOVERNANCE & RISK WORKING PARTY MINUTES - REPORT 

(Pages 83 - 86) 
 
20. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 

(PART 1)  
 
 To consider any other business that the Chair accepts as being urgent. 

 
21. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC  
 
 The following items contain exempt information. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by 
the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to 
that Act. The Public Interest test has been applied and favours 
exclusion. 
 
 



22. ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - MACK TRADING - APPENDIX 
(Pages 87 - 88) 

 
23. TAYLOR SHAW - APPENDIX  
 
 To be circulated separately. 

 
24. IMWP MINUTES - APPENDIX  
 
 To be circulated separately. 

 
25. GOVERNANCE & RISK WORKING PARTY MINUTES - APPENDIX 

(Pages 89 - 92) 
 
26. NON RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENTS (Pages 93 - 96) 
 
27. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 

(PART 2)  
 
 To consider any other business that the Chair accepts as being urgent. 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



�����������		�

���
�

��������	
�����	����
�

������� ����������� ���������������
�
� ������������ ��������

����� ����
!�"�����
#$%������
�

����������
#%���&�������
���������
"�'(����
�

� ������������ &���������'��"������������
��"�������&���)�����������������
����*�����'+������������
�

*������������ � ���������,���
-.*'/.�

�������  �����
-.*'/.�

#)��� ��� � ����������.�0����
0��,������������

��������������
�.��������������������
$()�������

�
�

�� 	�	�������������������
����������
����������
����
��
�
�(1��� ,�� ��2�� ��� �������� ,����� ���� ���� ���� )������� ��� )�3��������
���������������������,����������(����������� ����������+���������������(�����
���������������+����������4�
�
�������������� ����������������)����������������� �����1���������+�1�� ���
1����� ((1�� �+� ����� ���� "����� � ����)� &�(���� ���� �� )������� ������� ���
 ������������,�+������((1���+����������������5���4�
�

	� 	���
����
�
!�� �������� �+� &�,� "%� ���� #���� ���� (��� ��1(����� ��� (������ �+� ���
(��� ��������	6��������	���4�
�
�����������
���������� !����"��#�$�����%�
�

7� ������
	��
����&�����'�����
�
*��,���(����1����������������������1�����������������������������������������
�������������1���(���������8��9�������+��������������((���4�
�
*�� ,��� (���� ��� ��� �(��(��� 1�� ����������� "����� '(���� ���� ������� 1��
�������������� �����������������������#�����&�������1��))���������8��9������
�+��������������((���4�
�
!���(��(���,���)�������������:�:���
�
!��(������,������)���������������;�:�������������<�������� ����4�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



�
��������� ()*+,���
������! $����#����##-��������"���..�� �������&�$������#��/�
������ ��� �����������%�
�

=� �0���������������1���
��
�

� !�� �������� �+� 5������ �>����� ��(��������� ��� ������ ��� &����� �����(���
��������� �&���� *����(��� ���+����� ��� 1� ���� ��� .,)���� +��(� 
� ��� 6�
')�(1��	���4�

�
� ��������� �� 
���� ���� ���������� �2#���� ����� 3� ����2����� ���� �� ���� �0�� ���

� $�!��� ��! $����#�� 0��//#�-� 1���4� ��#�� � 5� ��� � �� �� ���#�� ���"�#� ��� "��
�2#����� $��/!#���#��������������"�� �$�#$!������������"�#��"-�����#�1����$�%�
�

:� 	����6����������������������
�������
�
!�����������+�5��������1(��������)������������+��(����������+�����1����� ��
1�� ���#�������((������� +��� ��� ������ �+� ��� ��������� ���� +��������� ����(���� �+�
���������������5����+��������������7��������	������������?:=��;:4�!����
,�������������,�����������������+���������������#�����/)�����������)���������
�������������((������������������	���4�
�
�����������
��������/�����/�7+849)+�/�#������!�����/������$$�! ���� ��/� � $����
������� ����/�	�#��-������� ��� ��! ��/�#�����-��#�� ����3:�	�#$��;9::�"��
 ����%�
�

;� ���<���0��
�������
�
!�� �������� �+� 5������ ��1(����� �� �)���� ����� ��� ���� ��� )��)���� ���� �� ���
������������ ��������������������������5�����+����,�� �����)�������+���(�
�+����@����� �����������4��
�
!���)���������1�������++�����>���(����+�����++���������������������+����������
�������� ����1��2����������������������)�������)��(���� �������,���������
 ������ ��+�)�,���+���������,����))��)����4��
�
!���)����������+��������)������������������� ����� ������������� ��������+���
����������������������)���������1���++�������(������1��������������+�5�����4�
*��,����������,���� +��� �������������+����1��1���� �����������������2�� ����
���� ��������5���������������()������������+����������������)��������������
���������� 3�������������)����� ����������� (���� ��� ���)�1���������������������
��(���������������������4�
�
������������
�
:%� 
���� ���� /����=� 2� �//�$�#�� "�� �!���#����� ��� �.� 4� $����� � �� ��� �� "� >�
�$$�! ��4� �!���#���� � ��#!$��� �� /�#� ���� .�-�� �� �/� "� �/���� � �� /�#�
� ������ �� �#� ��$��� �4� /�#� ���� �$$�! ��� =���� ���� "� >�#�� (��-��� �� >� �/�
�$���� �,4� =���� ���� 0��"��� �!������ � (������ ��#���,4� � �� =���� ����#� /� � $����
� ����!��� �� /�#� ���� .!#.���� �/� ��>� 2� � �� #������ 2� ��.�����4� ?�.� @�
$��A!��4�� ��$�! ��#���2 �$��A!������#�7:94999*��
�

Page 2



� � ��#�$��#��/��� � $��� � � �� ��%������� �
��.!�-���#�$��#��/��� � $���� ��������
�-��#�������

� � '�����/��� � $������#��$����� 
������1%���!���
� � '�����/��� �/���4����� !���
� � � ���!�����#���#��$���� � 	��$����5%���� �2� �
� � '�����/��
���#��$����� � 0��//#�-�1%�����#�� �
� � '�����/��!..�#����#��$���� � 	�$�����5%���=��#�
� � �#� $�.����� ��� ���//�$�#� � 6��  ��	%������$>�
� � 	��"�#����#��$���	� �2�#�� 	�#2�#���	���!#>��
� � �.�#���� ��	� �2�#�� � 0!-�1%�'�-�� �
�
;%� 
���� ���� /����=� 2��//�$�#�������.�=�#�� ��� �!���#���� � ������ ����$���� ��
� ��#����� ����$!�� ����� 4�"!�� �������!���#���������#� �/�#��/��� �-*�
� � �
� � '�����/��� ��� ��! �� � ����#�5%�1����$��
� � �� ��#�� ������ ��	� �2�#�� ��-�� ��<%�����#�
� � � ������ ��	� �2�#�� � ���#�$>�0%���=�����
�
3%� 
���� /�#� ���� .!#.����� �/� �!�� ����2� $�� ��#�/�$���� 4� ���#�$>� 0%� ��=����4�
� ������ ��	� �2�#4�"������2 ������ ��!���#������//�$�#%�
�
8%�
���4�/�#����������� $���/���!"�4����"��$� /�#���������������#�$��#��/��� � $��
$� �����2 �����//�$�#���/�	�������B�#$����.�=�#���/�����# �-�� �"����/��/�	���
� �� 1�##��� 	��#�.����� � ��#�!2�� ��! $��4� =��$�4� /#��� :� 5!�-� ;9::4� =�!���
#�A!�#���=���/�����/����=� 2��//�$�#�*��
�
� � '�����/��� ��� ��! �� � ����#�5%�1����$��
� � �� ��#�� ������ ��	� �2�#�� ��-�� ��<%�����#�
� � �#� $�.����� ��� ���//�$�#� � 6��  ��	%������$>�
��� � � ������ ��	� �2�#�� � ���#�$>�0%���=�����
�


� ��
�����������
��������
���������������
�
!�� �������� �+� 5������ ��1(����� �� �)���� ����� ��� ��� ��� ��������� ��(������
�++���������������))���������� ���������� �	��+����*����������)���%���������
���������*�%��������)����+�����������5���4�
�
��������� �� 
���� ���� /����=� 2� �//�$�#�� "�� �!���#����� ��� �$�� � � "����/� �/� ����
���� ����#� 2��!���#��-����$� ����#��..�������������#����2��:��#����2��;��/�����
� ��# ������.!��������!��� ��#�$��!#�*�
�
� �� ������� � � � ��#�$��#��/��� � $��
� ������
�-��#������� ��.!�-���#�$��#��/��� � $��
� 	�$�������=��#� � '�����/��!..�#����#��$���
� ����#�1����$�� � '�����/�	�#��-������� ��� ��! ��
� 6��  �������$>� � �#� $�.����� ��� ���//�$�#�
�

A� 	���0�	��
�������&�
���C��
6��
�
!�� �������� �+� 5������ ��1(����� �� �)���� ����� ��+��(�� �(1��� �+� ������������
����� (���� +��� ��� (�������� � �+� ��� ������� ������� $>����� )���+����� �+� ��5� 1��
��)���������(���4�

Page 3



�
!�� �))���@� ��� ��� �)���� �������� �� ����� ����� � ���� ��� ��(�� ���� �����������
�����,�������)����� ����(����,�����(������� ��� ������� )������ >����� )���+����� �+�
��54�
�
������������
�
:%� 
���� ���� �����#� $� ��� ��� � � ���� �..� ��B� ��� ���� #�.�#��=��$�� ����� �!�� ����
$� �#�$�!��� �##� 2��� ��� ��#�!2�� =��$�� ��.����� �- ���$�� =���� $� �!$��
�� ���#� 2�"�� ����%�
�
;%� 
���� ���� ����������  ����� ����� ����� ��� "�� 2� ��.���� ���� ��#�!2�� � �
�2#���� �� "��=�� � ���� � ��.� �� �� �#!������ �/� ���� ��.����� �- ���$��
	�#��-������#�������A!��-��! �4���.����
#!������.� -�� ����.������- ���$��
=����#�������� �2�#���/������/! �%��
�

6� ���<��0����
���
��
�
!�����������+�5��������1(��������)�������������������1�����))��������������
+���1��2�� ��������)����������������������������� ����������������5���4�!��
����������������,����%B'�����)�������1�@����� ���7�������	��74� �"�,�����
$���)���-����� �������� ,��� +����� � %B'� ��� ������ ��(� �+� ���� ������� ��� �����
1��2��)����������������4�*��,����)�������������(������+���1���������������� ��
���@����� ��������������������������1��2������������(�(����� �+�����������(���
��2��)����1+������������������+���������)�����4�
�
�����&������
�
:%�
���������2#���� ������ ������� ��#��/�#�����.#������ ��/�"� >� 2���#��$������
������! $���� $�!�� 2�	�#��-������� ��� ��! ��"�� ����%�
�
;%�
���������2#���� ����������B�� ��� ��/������B���� 2�$� �#�$��=��������0#�!.�
/�#�����.�#�����/������� ��#�.#�$����=��$��������"�� ������#���� �3:�	�#$��;9:3�
"�� ����%�
�
3%�
�������"�� ����������������#�$��#��/��� � $��$� ��2#��������������2 �� ���/�
���� �B���� 2� $� �#�$��=��������0#�!.� ��� � ����#�"� >����!�������������� ����
��#��$���.#��#����$��.����� ��/�������� ��#%�
�

��� ������0�&���	��
�����������'�	�������	��
�
!�����������+�5��������1(��������)�����������+��(��((1����+�� ������������
���������)(�����()����� �������&����������(����������'��(4�
�
�����������
��������#�.�#��"�� ����%�
�

��� ��������
�
���������
�������������
�
!�����������+�5�������>����������((����������,�)�������������1��$�����
�(1������@������1��������1���+��+����������������5���4�
�
�

Page 4



������������
�
:%� 
���� ��! $����#� 0��//#�-� 1���� $� �� !�� ��� "�� � � �B�$!����� 	��"�#� �/�
�����%�
�
;%� 
���� ��! $����#� �  � 	$��$��� � $� �� !�� ��� �� �0�� ��"�!#� 0#�!.�
�..�� ��� ��� �������$���0���# �� ���� ��� �����������%�
�

�	� 
������6�	���0�	��
�������������
��
�
!���������� ��1(����� �� �)���� ����� )������ �� ���,� �+� !����������� (���
����������,���������������������5�������5��+��� ���	���C���+�����������������
�)����� ���� �����(������� �+� ���9��()������ ,���� ��� �������� (��� (���
����� ������ ��������(��� (���)�������4� � *������1��)�)���� �������������
,��������������*�5#�!����������� (������4�
�
��������� �� 
���� ���� 
#���!#-� 	� �2��� �� �  !��� ��.�#�� /�#� ;9:9D::"��
�2#���%�
�

�7� ��&��
	��
�������	�����;9:9�::��
�
!�����������+�5��������1(��������)�������������������������(���)�+��(����
�+����������������5����+��� �����������7��������	��������)�����1�� ���
�����()���4�
�
��������� �� 
���� ���� � ������ �� .�#/�#�� $�� /�#� ���� :;� �� ��� .�#���� ��� 3:�
	�#$��;9::�"�� ����%�
�

�=� ������������
�����
�
!�����������+�5��������1(��������)������������������������ (����1�� �(���
1��������� ��������� ��� #�(�������� � #��������� +��� �������� ������� 5����� +��� ��
���1��� B�� �� +��� ��� #���������� ���� ��������� ��� �()���������� +��� ��� ��5�
�����(���)��)����)���+����4�
�
!���)���������1������()����������1���������5������(���)��)������������
����� ������� �+� ��� ���1��� ����,����� ���� ��� �� ���� ,���� ������� ���� +�����
�)������������1�������5������������1���(�������4�
�
��������� �� 
���� ���� .#�.����� �..#��$�� ��� $�#"� � #��!$��� � ��� ���� 	���
� ������ ��.#�.�#�����"��� ��#���%�
�

�:� ���������������6��
�
!�� �������� �+� 5������ ��+��(�� �(1��� �+� �� ������������� �������� 1�� "��
!�������������D5�������E�)������������))����,�������,����()������������+���
�+�)�1�������������++4��
�
"��)�����������������������������)���������������:�����	��������)��������
1����1(������� ��� ���� ����)���������()�����������+���������������������������
)������������ ��� ���(�+����� ��+����&��'��������������+�()�����������1������
����4�

Page 5



�
��������� �� 
���� ���� #��.� ��� ������ ;9�	�-� ;9::� �!"������� ��� ���� 
#���!#-�
$� �!������ �(�..� ��B�:��������#�.�#�,�"���..#����%�
�

�;� �����&��	���0�	��
����
���
��
�
!���������� �+�5��������1(������� �)���� ����� ��+��(���(1��� ����� ��� �����
@����� +��� )������ (��� (��� ���� 1�� �+���� +����,�� � ��� ��(�����������
����4�*��,����)����������������������+��������������������+������@����� �)���������+�
)������ (��� (��� ������� ���� ��� 1� @����� ���� �� �,� )�����(���
)��������������4�
�
������������
�
:%� 
���� ���� ��/�##��� �/� ���� .#�$!#��� �� �B�#$���� /�#� .��������� �2��� �� "��
 ����%�
�
;%�
���������B�� ��� ��/�����$� �#�$���/�#���2���� ��0� �#���(�E0,�� ������/�#�
����#�$!##� ��#��.�$�����.��������� ���������3:�	�#$��;9:;�"�� ����%�
�

�
� ���&�
���C��
6�
������0��
�
!�� �������� �+� 5������ ��1(����� �� �)���� ����� ��+��(�� �(1��� �+� �� �(�����
1�� ��������������������	A�')�(1��	����1����)���������(������������13���
�+��������5���������(������)������>����4��
�
��������� �� 
���� ���� ����� �/� ���� ���� �#� � � ���� �!"F�$�� �/� �� ��� � �! ��
� ������ �� � � .#������ �A!��-� "��  ����� � �� �����  ��� ���� �� /�#� ����2����� "��
����� ��#�#����������/����=� 2�����#�$��.���/�/!#���#�� /�#����� %�
�

�A� 0�&�������������6��
�
!�����������+�5��������1(������� �)���� ����� ��+��(���(1����+�����(1���+�
�(��(���� �>����� ��� ��� ��������� ������� '���(��� ��� �+���� ���� �� ���
����� (�����������++�� �����������+��(�������+���������������� (����� ����� �
��������+����*����(������������ ����2�� ��������*����4�
�
��������� �� 
���� ���� !.������ 0���# � $�� ����$-� ������� �� ����$���� ���
�..� ��B�:��������#�.�#��"���..#����%�
�

�6� �C��
�����������
�
!�����������+�5��������1(��������)�����������+��(���(1����+�)�� ����������
�()�(���������+�����()�����������(�+���((1����+� ���$>����1��&�+�����9
���+���� ���(� �()����� � ��� ((1��� ���� +��(�� ((1��� �+� ��� ��������
�������5������������#8�����(�������������1�������+�)��+�������(����������
1�������()���4��
�
�����������
��������#�.�#��"�� ����%�
�
�
�

Page 6



	�� �������������
����		�

����
�
!�� �������� �+� 5������ ��1(����� �� �)���� ����� ��+��(�� �(1��� �+� ��� �)����
)�1���������	;�����	����1�����"�����+���((������((�����+���1����#��������
�������()�����+����	��
9	��A����� ��(������)�1����������)������4�
�
�����������
��������#�.�#��"�� ����%�
�

	�� ���
����'�	������
�
!�����������+�5��������1(��������)�����������+��(���(1����+���������(��+�
��� ����� ������ � @����� ��� ��)��� �+� �+��1���(��� ,��2� ��� ��� ;��� +����� ���
���������(1����&���)����,�����,����,���1����5����)�����+����������)��)����
�����(���)���+����4�!�� ������ �@���������1��������������1���+��+���5�
1���B�%�������$�������B%$�4�
�
��������� �� 
���� ���� ��$� �� ��=���� �� ��#� /�#� #�/!#"����� �� =�#>� ��� �������
����"�#��"���$$�.���%�
�

		� �G�	�
������	�
�������G�����������	�	��������
'����������
�
�����������
��������.!"��$�"���B$�!����/#������������ 2�� �����2#�! ��������
����/����=� 2������#�����"��$� ����#���$� ��� ��B��.��� /�#����� �"-���#�!���/�
.�#�2#�.��3��/���#��:��/��$���!���:;���/�������$���0���# �� ���$�%�
�

	7� ��&��
	��
�	���
����0�1��<��0����
6�	���
����
�
!�����������+�5��������1(��������)���������)��������(1���,�������(������
�+����*����(������������ ����2�� ���������������7�#)����	��������
�����	���4�
�
�����������
���������� !�����/������=���	1������� 2�4�=��$��=�#������$�������
�B��.���..� ��$����������#�.�#�4�"���..#����%�
�

	=� ���
'��������
�������
���
��0��
�
!������������ �+�5��������1(������� �)���� ����� ��+��(���(1����+� ������������
����� �� ������� ��� �))���� ��� �))��������� ������ +��(� '������� $�������
���������� � +�����(������� ������������������5���������!����+��#�(�������
B���4� !�� �))��������� ,��� ��� )������ )������ )��������� +��� �:� �����+���� � ���++�
((1��� ,��� ,����� ��� �������� ��� )������)��� ��� ��� ������  ����(��� )������
���(4��"��)���������������()����������������'����&� ���� ���19���������
,����0��,�������������+������)������7�����	��������	�����	�7;4�!����(�������
,�����1���13���������)����������+�����>�����+������������(������������()������
�+����� ���� �(���4�
�
��������� �� 
���� �..#����� �/� ���� �..��$���� � /�#� �������� � ��� ����	�#��-�����
�� ��� ��! ���/���!���# ����$�#�$��� �#�$�� 2�"�� ����%�
�

	:� ��
�������
��������
�
!�����������+�5��������1(��������)�����������+��(���(1����+���������(��+�
�� ����� ������ � @����� ��� ��)��� �+� ��� )��������� �+� ���������� ������� ��� ���

Page 7



�������5���4��#���������������� �@���������1�����������1�����#���������
���)�����+���3�����)�����(���,������(1��������&������������������������4�*��,���
���������� ����� 1���� ��(1���� ���� &��������� ������� ��������� ,����� ����
���+��(�������������)������������((����(��� �����1���������� �����)�����
������(��� ��+��������������((���4�
�
�����������
����� �����"������/�����������$� ���$���-����� ��2��!���� ��#4�
��>� 2� � ��� $� ����#���� � ���� �=�#�� $#���#��� �/� A!����-� �/� ��#��$��4� .#�$�4� #��>�
�� �2��� �� � �� /� � $���� ����!�4� ���� �!$$���/!�� �� ��#�#� "�� �..�� ���� ���
.#�������$�!�#������#��$������	�#��-������� ��� ��! �%�
�

	;� ��&��
	��
���&�����
�������(�����
,��
�
!�����������+�5��������1(��������)�����������������(1����+���������(��+�
��� )�����(��� )������ ��� ����� ��� �����(��� ����������� ��� )������ ����� ���
���������������������������5���4�
�
�����������
����� � ����"������/� ����������$� ���$���-����� ��2��!���� ��#4�
��>� 2�� ���$� ����#���� ������=�#��$#���#����/�A!����-��/���#��$���� ��.#�$�4�����
�!$$���/!�� �� ��#�#� "�� �..�� ���� ��� .#��������#���2�$� ����$�� ��� 	�#��-�����
�� ��� ��! �%�
�

	
� �����������

6�1��<�������
�
!���������� �+� 5������ ��1(����� �� �)���� ����� ��+��(���(1��� �+� ���� ��������
��2�� ����� �� ������� ��� �))���� ��� �))��������� ������ +��(� B��+���� B�����
���2)���� +��� ��(������� ����������� ������� 5���� ��� �� !����+�� #�(�������
B���4� !�� ��()���� ���� ������ �� ��������� ,���� ��� .��������� 5��� F� %����
'������ ��� 1����� +��� ��������� ���� )������ ���������� +��������� ����� ��� �������
5������ *���������� +��(� ��� #)���� 	���� ��� 7�� ����� 	�7A4� *�� ,��� �)����� ����� ���
��(�������,�����1���13���������)����������+�����>�����+������������(����������
��()�������+����� ���� �(���4��
�
��������� �� 
���� ���� �..#����� �/� ���� �..��$���� � /�#� �������� � ��� ����
	�#��-������� ��� ��! ���/����/�!#������-�1�#>.��$��"�� ����%�
�

	A� �������&��1��
�
!�����������+�5��������1(��������)���� ����� ��+��(���(1����+� �����������+�
���������� ���,��+�)����������+����� ���1������� +�����(�������1������������2��
1�� ��� #������� ������ +����,�� � ��� ���������� ���,� �+� ��� 5���� ��� ��� 7�� ������
	���4� *�� ,��� ���((���� ����� ��� �������� ��� ,����� ��� �()�(��� ��� ������
������ 1���� �>���(���� +��� ��((������ #�(������� B����� 1� �+���4� !��
�))��)����� �����+�1����������>�����(���1���13��� �����������������)���� �
��� ��� �����(� �+� ��� ������� 3�������� ���,� ��� ��� ������ ���@������ �+� )�1����
������ )������4� !�� ������ ������ 1���� �>���(���� ���� 1�� ������� 1�� ���
#��������������������������)�����1����1����4�
�
�����������
����������$���� �� �=�����#������.���� �������������#�������"� ��
#�A!�#��� ���/�#�����! ��-��������� ��������"����/�##��%�
�
�

Page 8



	6� �����������
����
�
!�����)������+��(���(1��������++�������������������(��+�?�7	������,��1�����
��)�������������������������7��.��(1��	��6�����1����������+��4�
�
�����������
������������������$� /�#�������#�$���� ����� ��/�������#�$��#��/�
��=�����������!���/�7:3;4999�"��=#���� ��//����#�$���#-�=��� ������"��%�
�

7�� ��
���	��
����0������	�����������
���	�1����6��
�
!����������+��(���������������((���������������������5��������������������
���������������5��������������,�������)����"����+� ����������5����
,�� 1���� ��� ��� ����� ��� 7�� ����� 	���4� !�������� ����2�� ��(� 1���� +��� �����
@()����� ,��2� ,���� 1���� ��� �������� ��((���� ���� ��� �������� ���� ���
��((����,�������(�1������������� �������))������(��4�
�
�

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

1
 A
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

re
p

o
rt

M
er

se
ys

id
e 

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d

A
u

d
it

 2
01

0/
11

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

2
 C

o
n

te
n

ts
K

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..3

B
ef

o
re

 I 
co

m
p

le
te

 m
y 

au
d

it
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..4

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

5

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 D
ra

ft
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

au
d

it
o

r’
s 

re
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e 
m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

W
ir

ra
l B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
ci

l..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
10

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
a 

– 
D

ra
ft

 in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
au

d
it

o
r’

s 
re

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 in
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
...

...
...

...
...

...
..1

2

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 t

o
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..1

4

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 L
et

te
r 

o
f 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

16

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..1
8

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 5
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
9

 

T
ra

ff
ic

 li
g

h
ts

 
R

ed
   

   
   

  A
m

be
r 

   
   

   
 G

re
en

 

Page 12



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

3
 K

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

 
T

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

fr
o

m
 m

y 
20

10
/1

1 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 o

f 
M

er
se

ys
id

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 (
th

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

) 
w

h
ic

h
 is

 s
u

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 c
o

m
p

le
te

.

O
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 

A
ud

it 
op

in
io

n 
 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

 !
 

S
ub

je
ct

 to
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 m

at
te

rs
 I 

pl
an

 to
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
au

di
t o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 o

f M
er

se
ys

id
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d.
 

 !
 

I i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 tw

o 
m

at
er

ia
l e

rr
or

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

, t
he

 o
m

is
si

on
 o

f a
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t a
s 

at
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

09
, a

nd
 a

 m
is

-c
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 £
27

3m
 p

oo
le

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

s 
eq

ui
ty

. T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
ha

s 
ag

re
ed

 to
 a

m
en

d 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r 
bo

th
 o

f t
he

se
 it

em
s.

 
 !

 
I i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
 s

m
al

l n
um

be
r 

of
 o

th
er

 d
is

cl
os

ur
e 

er
ro

rs
 a

nd
 o

ne
 n

on
-t

riv
ia

l a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

er
ro

r,
 a

ll 
of

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
s 

ag
re

ed
 to

 a
m

en
d.

 

     

Page 13



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

4
 B

ef
o

re
 I 

co
m

p
le

te
 m

y 
au

d
it

 
 

 I c
o

n
fi

rm
 t

o
 y

o
u

 
M

y 
re

po
rt

 in
cl

ud
es

 o
nl

y 
m

at
te

rs
 o

f g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

in
te

re
st

 th
at

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

to
 m

y 
at

te
nt

io
n 

in
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
m

y 
au

di
t. 

M
y 

au
di

t i
s 

no
t d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
al

l m
at

te
rs

 th
at

 m
ig

ht
 b

e 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 y
ou

.  

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce

I c
an

 c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

's
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

au
di

to
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

E
S

 1
 (

re
vi

se
d)

 -
 In

te
gr

ity
, O

bj
ec

tiv
ity

 a
nd

 In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. I
 c

an
 a

ls
o 

co
nf

irm
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 a

 th
re

at
 to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, o
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 in

te
gr

ity
.  

 T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
's

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

ha
s 

no
t u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
an

y 
no

n-
au

di
t w

or
k 

fo
r 

th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
du

rin
g 

20
10

/1
1.

 

 
 

I a
sk

 y
o

u
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
o

 m
e 

I a
sk

 t
h

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
to

: 

!
 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

m
at

te
rs

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t b
ef

or
e 

re
co

m
m

en
di

ng
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 to

 
W

irr
al

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
(t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s)

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
m

itt
ee

 (
th

e 
A

R
M

C
).

 

!
 

ta
ke

 n
ot

e 
of

 th
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d’

s 
ac

co
un

ts
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t (
A

pp
en

di
x 

2)
;  

!
 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 le

tte
r 

of
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
(A

pp
en

di
x 

3)
 to

 th
e 

A
R

M
C

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 
F

un
d 

be
fo

re
 I 

is
su

e 
m

y 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

; a
nd

 

!
 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
e 

A
R

M
C

 a
pp

ro
ve

 m
an

ag
em

en
t’s

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 (
A

pp
en

di
x 

4)
. 

 I a
sk

 t
h

e 
A

R
M

C
 t

o
: 

!
 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

m
at

te
rs

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t a
nd

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 P

en
si

on
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 b
ef

or
e 

it:
 

!
ap

pr
ov

es
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

; 
!

ap
pr

ov
es

 th
e 

le
tte

r 
of

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

(A
pp

en
di

x 
3)

 b
ef

or
e 

I i
ss

ue
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

; a
nd

 
!

ag
re

es
 a

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 (
A

pp
en

di
x 

4)
.. 

Page 14



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

5
 F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
 

 
T

h
e 

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
’s

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 a

n
 im

p
o

rt
an

t 
m

ea
n

s 
b

y 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 

fo
r 

it
s 

st
ew

ar
d

sh
ip

 o
f 

th
e 

fu
n

d
s.

 T
h

e 
m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

th
e 

A
R

M
C

 h
av

e 
fi

n
al

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

th
es

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
t 

is
 im

p
o

rt
an

t 
th

at
 t

h
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
o

f 
th

e 
A

R
M

C
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 m

y 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
b

ef
o

re
 a

d
o

p
ti

n
g

 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’s
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

S
ub

je
ct

 to
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 m
at

te
rs

, I
 p

la
n 

to
 is

su
e 

an
 a

ud
it 

re
po

rt
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n 
on

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
M

at
te

rs
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

re
: 

!
 

I h
av

e 
no

t r
ec

ei
ve

d 
a 

fin
al

 s
et

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

l t
he

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 a
gr

ee
d 

on
 a

ud
it 

  
!

 
I h

av
e 

ye
t t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

el
em

en
ts

 o
f m

y 
te

st
in

g,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 o

n:
 

!
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

, a
nd

 
!

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

co
nt

ai
ns

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 m

y 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t f
or

 in
cl

us
io

n 
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s.

 

I r
ec

ei
ve

d 
th

e 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t f

or
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

on
 1

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 If
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 m

at
er

ia
l i

nc
on

si
st

en
ci

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
st

at
em

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t r
ef

le
ct

s 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

si
on

 S
ch

em
e 

(A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n)

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

8 
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
gu

id
an

ce
, I

 w
ill

 is
su

e 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

op
in

io
n.

 A
pp

en
di

x 
1a

 c
on

ta
in

s 
a 

co
py

 o
f m

y 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t f
or

 in
cl

us
io

n 
in

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d’
s 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t. 

E
rr

o
rs

 in
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

I i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 tw

o 
m

at
er

ia
l e

rr
or

s 
in

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d’
s 

ac
co

un
ts

. T
he

 fi
rs

t i
s 

th
at

, i
n 

co
m

m
on

 w
ith

 m
os

t l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

s,
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 d

id
 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 a

 N
et

 A
ss

et
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t a

s 
at

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
09

. I
t i

s 
a 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f I
F

R
S

 1
 F

irs
t t

im
e 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 IF

R
S

 th
at

 b
od

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
co

m
pa

ra
tiv

e 
N

et
 

A
ss

et
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t a

t t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
to

 IF
R

S
. T

he
 s

ec
on

d 
is

 a
 m

is
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

of
 tw

o 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 to

ta
lli

ng
 £

27
3m

 a
s 

eq
ui

ty
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 p

oo
le

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
.  

I a
ls

o 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

on
e 

no
n-

m
at

er
ia

l e
rr

or
 in

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
 s

m
al

l n
um

be
r 

of
 o

th
er

 d
is

cl
os

ur
e 

er
ro

rs
.  

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 a

m
en

d 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r 
al

l o
f t

he
 e

rr
or

s 
I i

de
nt

ifi
ed

. 

Page 15



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

6
 F

or
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

f a
ll 

of
 th

e 
am

en
de

d 
er

ro
rs

, s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
re

 a
ls

o 
am

en
di

ng
 th

e 
dr

af
t a

cc
ou

nt
s 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 b

y 
£6

.7
m

. I
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 it

s 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

y,
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
d 

us
ed

 th
e 

la
te

st
 a

ud
ite

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 (

as
 a

t 3
0 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
10

) 
to

 v
al

ue
 a

n 
un

qu
ot

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t. 
H

ow
ev

er
, b

y 
th

e 
tim

e 
of

 
ou

r 
au

di
t, 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
s 

at
 3

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 w
er

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

nd
 w

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

m
ov

em
en

t i
n 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

R
1

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t l
ed

ge
r 

af
te

r 
it 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ec

on
ci

le
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l l

ed
ge

r 
ar

e 
al

so
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
. 

R
2

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

la
te

st
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 u

nq
uo

te
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f a

 fo
rm

al
 p

ro
ce

ss
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l a

dj
us

tin
g 

po
st

 b
al

an
ce

 s
he

et
 

ev
en

ts
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

an
d 

m
em

be
rs

' a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s.

 

S
p

ec
if

ic
 r

is
ks

 a
n

d
 a

re
as

 o
f 

ju
d

g
em

en
t 

In
 p

la
nn

in
g 

m
y 

au
di

t I
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 a
re

as
 o

f j
ud

ge
m

en
t t

ha
t I

 h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f m

y 
au

di
t. 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
an

d
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
F

in
d

in
g

1.
 T

ri
en

n
ia

l A
ct

u
ar

ia
l V

al
u

at
io

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 

T
he

 F
un

d 
ha

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
 T

rie
nn

ia
l A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 r
ef

le
ct

in
g 

its
 p

os
iti

on
 a

t 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 

20
10

. W
hi

ls
t t

hi
s 

is
 n

ot
 a

 d
ire

ct
 a

ud
it 

op
in

io
n 

ris
k,

 it
 is

 a
 k

ey
 is

su
e 

as
 r

eg
ar

ds
 th

e 
on

go
in

g 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 F

un
d.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 r

is
ks

 o
f i

nc
re

as
ed

 d
ef

ic
its

 le
ad

in
g 

to
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
os

ts
 fr

om
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

. 

 

A
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 a
tta

ch
ed

 to
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d’

s 
ac

co
un

ts
. 

N
o 

em
pl

oy
er

 h
as

 d
ef

au
lte

d 
on

 th
ei

r 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

ye
ar

. 

 

2.
 M

o
ve

 t
o

 ‘O
p

en
A

ir
’ s

ys
te

m
 

T
he

 F
un

d 
re

pl
ac

ed
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 u
se

d 
to

 m
on

ito
r 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l i

nt
er

na
lly

 m
an

ag
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

, 
‘S

ha
re

ho
ld

er
’, 

w
ith

 th
e 

‘O
pe

nA
ir’

 s
ys

te
m

 in
 2

01
0/

11
. T

he
re

 is
 a

 r
is

k 
th

at
 th

e 
ba

la
nc

es
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
ly

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

a 
ris

k 
th

at
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
 p

la
ce

 in
 th

e 
ne

w
 

sy
st

em
. 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
re

co
nc

ile
d 

th
e 

cl
os

in
g 

bo
ok

 c
os

t 
fig

ur
es

 fr
om

 ‘S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

’ t
o 

th
e 

op
en

in
g 

bo
ok

 
co

st
 fi

gu
re

s 
w

ith
in

 ‘O
pe

nA
ir’

.  
T

he
y 

di
d 

no
t 

id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

di
sc

re
pa

nc
ie

s.
 

Page 16



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

7
 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
F

in
d

in
g

3.
 Im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
vo

lu
n

ta
ry

 r
ed

u
n

d
an

cy
  

I a
m

 a
w

ar
e 

th
at

 W
irr

al
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 u
nd

er
go

in
g 

a 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

re
du

nd
an

cy
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

he
re

by
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ill
 le

av
e 

in
 2

01
0/

11
. T

hi
s 

m
ay

 a
ffe

ct
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
e 

te
am

 to
 

de
liv

er
 m

at
er

ia
lly

 c
or

re
ct

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 a

gr
ee

d 
tim

es
ca

le
s.

 

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
pr

ov
id

ed
 it

s 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r 
au

di
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
de

ad
lin

e 
on

 2
8 

Ju
ne

.  

4 
F

ir
st

 t
im

e 
ap

p
lic

at
io

n
 o

f 
In

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

F
ro

m
 2

01
0/

11
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 a

do
pt

 th
e 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (

IF
R

S
) 

C
od

e.
 T

he
 C

od
e 

se
ts

 o
ut

 th
e 

pr
op

er
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
 th

at
 b

od
ie

s 
m

us
t f

ol
lo

w
 

an
d 

re
qu

ire
s 

so
m

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l d

is
cl

os
ur

es
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
  

 

W
e 

fo
un

d 
on

e 
m

at
er

ia
l e

rr
or

 in
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 

F
un

ds
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
of

 IF
R

S
 –

 in
 c

om
m

on
 w

ith
 

m
os

t l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

s 
th

e 
F

un
d 

om
itt

ed
 a

 tr
an

si
tio

na
l N

et
 A

ss
et

 S
ta

te
m

en
t. 

5 
F

in
an

ci
al

 p
re

ss
u

re
s 

– 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 e

m
p

lo
ye

rs
 

W
e 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
th

at
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

bo
di

es
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 a
re

 u
nd

er
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

re
ss

ur
e 

an
d 

in
 m

an
y 

ca
se

s 
ar

e 
of

fe
rin

g 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

ea
rly

 r
et

ire
m

en
t, 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
re

du
nd

an
cy

 a
nd

 p
os

si
bl

y 
m

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

co
m

pu
ls

or
y 

re
du

nd
an

ci
es

 in
 th

e 
ne

ar
 fu

tu
re

. T
hi

s 
m

ay
 p

la
ce

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
kl

oa
d 

on
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
s 

te
am

 in
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
la

rg
e 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 s

ev
er

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

W
e 

di
d 

no
t f

in
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f a

ny
 b

ac
kl

og
 in

 
pe

ns
io

ns
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 w
or

kl
oa

d 
fr

om
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

nu
m

be
rs

 
of

 s
ev

er
an

ce
 c

as
es

 in
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

bo
di

es
. 

6 
R

ec
o

n
ci

lia
ti

o
n

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 A
X

IS
e 

an
d

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 L

ed
g

er
 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
di

d 
no

t c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 r

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
va

lu
es

 in
 A

X
IS

e 
P

en
si

on
s 

P
ay

ro
ll 

an
d 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s 

to
 th

os
e 

in
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 L

ed
ge

r 
in

 2
00

9/
10

. T
he

se
 a

re
 

es
se

nt
ia

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 g
iv

e 
th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 
th

e 
fu

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

re
 c

or
re

ct
ly

 s
ta

te
d 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

ve
r 

re
ce

ip
ts

 a
nd

 
pa

ym
en

ts
 in

 k
ey

 a
re

as
. 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
ha

s 
re

co
nc

ile
d 

lu
m

p 
su

m
s 

in
 A

X
IS

e 
an

d 
th

e 
le

dg
er

. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
sk

ed
 fo

r 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f a
 r

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 o

th
er

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

. 

7 
T

im
el

in
es

s 
o

f 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

42
(2

) 
of

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t P

en
si

on
 S

ch
em

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

00
8 

re
qu

ire
s 

em
pl

oy
er

 
au

th
or

iti
es

 to
 p

ay
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

ad
m

in
is

te
rin

g 
au

th
or

ity
 w

ith
in

 1
9 

da
ys

 o
f t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
th

e 
m

on
th

 to
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 r
el

at
e.

 O
ur

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 in
 2

00
9/

10
 fo

un
d 

th
at

 w
hi

ls
t m

os
t b

od
ie

s 
pa

y 
on

 ti
m

e,
 s

om
e 

sm
al

le
r 

bo
di

es
 m

is
se

d 
th

es
e 

de
ad

lin
es

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
, b

re
ac

hi
ng

 th
e 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
.

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
sk

ed
 fo

r 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f t
he

 ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 fr
om

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
 

Page 17



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

8
 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
F

in
d

in
g

8 
V

al
u

at
io

n
 o

f 
u

n
q

u
o

te
d

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
(S

O
R

P
) 

re
qu

ire
s 

th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
to

 b
e 

at
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 o

r 
w

he
re

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
is

 n
ot

 r
ea

di
ly

 a
sc

er
ta

in
ab

le
, a

t t
he

 F
un

d'
s 

es
tim

at
e 

of
 ‘f

ai
r 

va
lu

e’
. T

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d'

s 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

de
sc

rib
e 

th
e 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
th

es
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
s 

‘a
t m

an
ag

er
's

 v
al

ua
tio

n’
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

llo
w

ed
 fo

r 
bo

th
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 r
el

ie
s 

on
 v

al
ua

tio
ns

 r
ep

or
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d/

or
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
or

s.
 It

 is
 

es
se

nt
ia

l t
ha

t t
he

 p
re

pa
re

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

es
e 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 S
O

R
P

. G
ui

da
nc

e 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

P
en

si
on

s 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

A
dv

is
or

y 
G

ro
up

 (
P

R
A

G
) 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

of
 d

ue
 d

ili
ge

nc
e 

fo
r 

pr
ep

ar
er

s 
of

 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

st
at

em
en

ts
  

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

a 
du

e 
di

lig
en

ce
 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
P

R
A

G
 fr

am
ew

or
k.

 
It 

ha
s 

us
ed

 th
is

 w
he

n 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
. 

9 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
w

it
h

 C
ap

it
al

 D
yn

am
ic

s 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s 

pr
iv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

re
lie

s 
on

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

C
ap

ita
l 

D
yn

am
ic

s 
Lt

d 
un

de
r 

an
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t d

at
in

g 
ba

ck
 to

 1
99

1.
 O

ur
 r

ev
ie

w
 in

 2
00

9/
10

 o
f t

he
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 is

 o
ut

 o
f d

at
e 

an
d 

do
es

 n
ot

 s
pe

ci
fy

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
w

or
k.

 

 

A
 n

ew
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 C

ap
ita

l D
yn

am
ic

s 
Lt

d 
w

as
 

si
gn

ed
 in

 J
un

e 
20

11
. 

10
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
to

ry
 a

d
d

ed
 y

ea
rs

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s 

re
ce

ip
ts

 a
nd

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 w

er
e 

ov
er

st
at

ed
 b

y 
£1

2m
 in

 2
00

9/
10

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
in

co
rr

ec
t i

nc
lu

si
on

 o
f c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

ad
de

d 
ye

ar
s 

(C
A

Y
s)

. C
A

Y
s 

ar
e 

aw
ar

de
d 

un
de

r 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

00
0 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
fa

ll 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 th
e 

LG
P

S
. T

he
 L

G
P

S
 (

M
is

c)
 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

9 
no

w
 p

er
m

it 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

to
 c

on
ve

rt
 C

A
Y

s 
in

to
 p

en
si

on
 s

er
vi

ce
, h

ow
ev

er
 th

er
e 

ha
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
 to

 d
o 

th
is

 c
on

ve
rs

io
n 

by
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
m

an
ag

er
s 

ha
ve

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 

th
at

 n
o 

em
pl

oy
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
 h

as
 m

ad
e 

a 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

to
 c

on
ve

rt
 C

A
Y

s 
in

to
 p

en
si

on
 

se
rv

ic
e.

 (
I h

av
e 

as
ke

d 
th

at
 m

em
be

rs
 a

ls
o 

co
nf

irm
 th

is
 in

 th
e 

le
tte

r 
of

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n)

. T
he

 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
s 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ex

cl
ud

ed
 C

A
Y

S
 

fr
om

 it
s 

in
co

m
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 in

 2
01

0/
11

. I
t 

ha
s 

al
so

 a
m

en
de

d 
th

e 
co

m
pa

ra
tiv

e 
fig

ur
es

 fo
r 

20
09

/1
0.

  

 

Page 18



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

9
  S

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l

I h
av

e 
n

o
t 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

n
y 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l  

I o
nl

y 
re

po
rt

 th
os

e 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
I i

de
nt

ify
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

th
at

 a
re

 r
el

ev
an

t t
o 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

 a
m

 n
ot

 e
xp

re
ss

in
g 

an
 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

. 

Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
I c

on
si

de
r 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 y

ou
r 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
, a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s,
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
es

tim
at

es
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
.  

I h
av

e 
on

ly
 o

ne
 m

at
te

r 
to

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
yo

u:
 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
, p

o
lic

ie
s,

 e
st

im
at

es
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 c

lo
su

re
s 

Is
su

e
F

in
d

in
g

s 
an

d
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s

1.
 D

is
cl

o
su

re
 o

f 
p

o
o

le
d

 a
n

d
 in

te
rn

al
ly

 m
an

ag
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 

T
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
in

iti
al

ly
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 in
te

rn
al

ly
 m

an
ag

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t b
al

an
ce

s 
in

 a
gg

re
ga

te
 o

nl
y.

 P
oo

le
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

ve
hi

cl
es

 w
er

e 
al

so
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 in
 a

gg
re

ga
te

 o
nl

y.
 W

hi
ls

t t
hi

s 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 d
oe

s 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
S

O
R

P
, i

n 
m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

is
 d

oe
s 

no
t g

iv
e 

th
e 

re
ad

er
 o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
ad

eq
ua

te
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

se
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
.  

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ag

re
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
ul

d 
be

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 
to

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
us

ef
ul

 to
 th

e 
us

er
 o

f t
he

 
ac

co
un

ts
. 

 

 L
et

te
r 

o
f 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

B
ef

or
e 

I i
ss

ue
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 a

ud
iti

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 r
eq

ui
re

 m
e 

to
 a

sk
 y

ou
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
or

 w
rit

te
n 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 a

bo
ut

 y
ou

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

. I
 h

av
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
 d

ra
ft 

at
 A

pp
en

di
x 

4 
 

Page 19



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

10
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 1

 –
 D

ra
ft

 in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
au

d
it

o
r’

s 
re

p
o

rt
 t

o
 t

h
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
o

f 
W

ir
ra

l B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

ci
li

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

p
en

si
o

n
 f

u
n

d
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

I h
av

e 
au

di
te

d 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
un

de
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8.

 T
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 c

om
pr

is
e 

th
e 

F
un

d 
A

cc
ou

nt
, t

he
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

re
la

te
d 

no
te

s.
 T

he
se

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
P

ol
ic

ie
s.

 
 T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 is

 m
ad

e 
so

le
ly

 to
 th

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f W
irr

al
 B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

t I
I o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8 

an
d 

fo
r 

no
 o

th
er

 
pu

rp
os

e,
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
8 

of
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
of

 A
ud

ito
rs

 a
nd

 A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 in

 M
ar

ch
 

20
10

. 
 R

es
p

ec
ti

ve
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 o

f 
th

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r 

A
s 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s,

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

’s
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ro
pe

r 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. M
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 to
 a

ud
it 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

 a
nd

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
n 

A
ud

iti
ng

 (
U

K
 a

nd
 Ir

el
an

d)
. T

ho
se

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

e 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

’s
 E

th
ic

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

A
ud

ito
rs

. 

 i F
or

 in
cl

us
io

n 
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s 

Page 20



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

11
  S

co
p

e 
o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

A
n 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 g
iv

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 fr

ee
 fr

om
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t, 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
d 

by
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f: 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 d

is
cl

os
ed

; t
he

 r
ea

so
na

bl
en

es
s 

of
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

fu
nd

; a
nd

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

 r
ea

d 
al

l t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
fo

re
w

or
d 

[a
nd

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t]i
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

m
at

er
ia

l i
nc

on
si

st
en

ci
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
f I

 b
ec

om
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 a
pp

ar
en

t m
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

I c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
m

y 
re

po
rt

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
: 

" 
gi

ve
 a

 tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
an

d 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 a
nd

 d
is

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
as

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1
ot

he
r 

th
an

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
to

 p
ay

 p
en

si
on

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

be
ne

fit
s 

af
te

r 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e

ye
ar

 
an

d 
" 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

op
er

ly
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 o
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
gi

ve
n 

in
 th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
fo

re
w

or
d 

[a
nd

 th
e 

co
nt

en
t o

f t
he

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t]i
i  f

or
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 p

re
pa

re
d 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 
     i I

 w
ill

 in
se

rt
 th

es
e 

w
or

ds
 if

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 m
at

te
rs

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 m
y 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t. 

ii 
I w

ill
 in

se
rt

 th
es

e 
w

or
ds

 if
 I 

ha
ve

 n
o 

m
at

te
rs

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 m
y 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t. 

Page 21



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

12
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 1

a 
– 

D
ra

ft
 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
au

d
it

o
r’

s 
re

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 in
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 
D

ra
ft

 in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
au

d
it

o
r’

s 
re

p
o

rt
 t

o
 t

h
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
o

f 
W

ir
ra

l B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

p
en

si
o

n
 f

u
n

d
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

I h
av

e 
au

di
te

d 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
un

de
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8.

 T
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 c

om
pr

is
e 

th
e 

F
un

d 
A

cc
ou

nt
, t

he
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

re
la

te
d 

no
te

s.
 T

he
se

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
P

ol
ic

ie
s.

 

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 is
 m

ad
e 

so
le

ly
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f W

irr
al

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t I

I o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8 
an

d 
fo

r 
no

 o
th

er
 

pu
rp

os
e,

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

8 
of

 th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 in

 M
ar

ch
 

20
10

. 
 R

es
p

ec
ti

ve
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 o

f 
th

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r 

A
s 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s,

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

’s
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ro
pe

r 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. M
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 to
 a

ud
it 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

 a
nd

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
n 

A
ud

iti
ng

 (
U

K
 a

nd
 Ir

el
an

d)
. T

ho
se

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

e 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

’s
 E

th
ic

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

A
ud

ito
rs

.

Page 22



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

13
 S

co
p

e 
o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

A
n 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 g
iv

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 fr

ee
 fr

om
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t, 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
d 

by
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f: 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 d

is
cl

os
ed

; t
he

 r
ea

so
na

bl
en

es
s 

of
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

fu
nd

; a
nd

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

 r
ea

d 
al

l t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
m

at
er

ia
l i

nc
on

si
st

en
ci

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
au

di
te

d 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

f I
 b

ec
om

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 a

pp
ar

en
t m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

I 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
m

y 
re

po
rt

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
: 

" 
gi

ve
 a

 tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
an

d 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 a
nd

 d
is

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
as

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
to

 p
ay

 p
en

si
on

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

be
ne

fit
s 

af
te

r 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

ye
ar

; 
an

d 
" 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

op
er

ly
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
gi

ve
n 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t f

or
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 p

re
pa

re
d 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 
 M

at
te

rs
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 I 

re
p

o
rt

 b
y 

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

 

I h
av

e 
no

th
in

g 
to

 r
ep

or
t i

n 
re

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
st

at
em

en
t o

n 
w

hi
ch

 I 
re

po
rt

 to
 y

ou
 if

, i
n 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t d
oe

s 
no

t r
ef

le
ct

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

si
on

 S
ch

em
e 

(A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n)

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

8 
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
gu

id
an

ce
. 

    

Page 23



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

14
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

 –
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

 t
o

 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
I i

d
en

ti
fi

ed
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 d
u

ri
n

g
 m

y 
au

d
it

 a
n

d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
h

av
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. I
 b

ri
n

g
 t

h
em

 t
o

yo
u

r 
at

te
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

id
 y

o
u

 in
 f

u
lf

ill
in

g
 y

o
u

r 
g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
. 

 

F
u

n
d

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

st
at

em
en

t 

A
dj

us
te

d 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

N
at

ur
e 

of
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t 
D

r 
£0

00
s 

C
r 

£0
00

s 
D

r 
£0

00
s 

C
r 

£0
00

s 

T
ra

ns
iti

on
al

 IF
R

S
 n

et
 a

ss
et

 
st

at
em

en
t o

m
itt

ed
 

In
cl

ud
e 

ne
t a

ss
et

s 
st

at
em

en
t a

s 
at

  
1 

A
pr

il 
20

09
 

 
 

 
 

M
is

an
al

ys
is

 o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 

£1
39

m
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

A
m

un
di

 G
lo

ba
l 

E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 £

13
4m

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
M

&
G

 G
lo

ba
l E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 c
at

eg
or

is
ed

 
as

 e
qu

ity
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 p

oo
le

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

 
 

 
 

10
,0

00
 u

ni
ts

 in
 L

’O
re

al
 P

rim
e 

de
 

F
id

el
ité

 o
m

itt
ed

 fr
om

 n
et

 a
ss

et
s 

st
at

em
en

t 

In
cr

ea
se

 v
al

ue
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 in
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s 
st

at
em

en
t a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 m
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 fu

nd
s 

ac
co

un
t 

 
72

8 
72

8 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 

Page 24



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

15
 

F
u

n
d

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

st
at

em
en

t 

O
th

er
 d

is
cl

os
ur

e 
er

ro
rs

 
!

 
a 

sm
al

l n
um

be
r 

of
 ty

po
gr

ap
hi

c 
er

ro
rs

 a
nd

 
m

is
-c

as
tin

gs
  

 !
 

gr
os

s 
up

 £
4m

 F
or

w
ar

d 
E

ur
o 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
an

d 
£4

m
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

in
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 d
is

cl
os

ur
e 

no
te

 
 !

 
£0

.5
m

 tr
an

si
tio

na
l f

un
d 

m
an

ag
er

 b
al

an
ce

 
ca

te
go

ris
ed

 a
s 

eq
ui

ty
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 c

as
h 

 !
 

T
he

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 n

ot
e 

do
es

 n
ot

 d
is

cl
os

e 
th

at
 a

n 
el

em
en

t o
f r

eg
ul

ar
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
de

fic
it 

fu
nd

in
g 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 25



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

16
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 3

 –
 L

et
te

r 
o

f 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

M
er

se
ys

id
e 

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 -

 A
u

d
it

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

n
d

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 

I c
on

fir
m

 to
 th

e 
be

st
 o

f m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
an

d 
be

lie
f, 

ha
vi

ng
 m

ad
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 e

nq
ui

rie
s 

of
 o

th
er

 d
ire

ct
or

s 
an

d 
of

fic
er

s 
of

 th
e 

M
er

se
ys

id
e 

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
(t

he
 F

un
d)

, t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 g
iv

en
 to

 y
ou

 in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 y

ou
r 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 F

un
d’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 

20
11

.  

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
st

at
u

to
ry

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

es
 

I h
av

e 
fu

lfi
lle

d 
m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

un
de

r 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
 w

hi
ch

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 F
un

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 y
ou

, a
nd

 fo
r 

m
ak

in
g 

ac
cu

ra
te

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 to
 y

ou
. 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
ec

o
rd

s 

A
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 p
er

so
ns

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
en

tit
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 y

ou
 fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 y
ou

r 
au

di
t, 

an
d 

al
l t

he
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

y 
th

e 
F

un
d 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

op
er

ly
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 a
nd

 r
ec

or
de

d 
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.  

Ir
re

g
u

la
ri

ti
es

I a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

de
si

gn
, i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l c
on

tr
ol

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 d

et
ec

t f
ra

ud
 o

r 
er

ro
r.

 

I a
ls

o 
co

nf
irm

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 d

is
cl

os
ed

: 
!

 
m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

of
 fr

au
d,

 o
r 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
fr

au
d,

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
ei

th
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

ol
es

 in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

r 
ot

he
rs

 w
he

re
 

fr
au

d 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

;  
!

 
m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

of
 a

ny
 a

lle
ga

tio
ns

 o
f f

ra
ud

, o
r 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
fr

au
d,

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
en

tit
y’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
ed

 b
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 fo

rm
er

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 a
na

ly
st

s,
 r

eg
ul

at
or

s 
or

 o
th

er
s;

 a
nd

 
!

 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f o

ur
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f t

he
 r

is
k 

th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 m

is
st

at
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 fr

au
d.

 

Page 26



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

17
 L

aw
, r

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s,
 c

o
n

tr
ac

tu
al

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

d
es

 o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 

I h
av

e 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

to
 y

ou
 a

ll 
kn

ow
n 

in
st

an
ce

s 
of

 n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e,

 o
r 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
no

n-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s,

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 c
od

es
 o

f p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 w

ho
se

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 w

he
n 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

T
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
ve

nt
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 la

w
, r

eg
ul

at
io

n 
or

 o
th

er
 a

ut
ho

rit
y.

  T
he

 F
un

d 
ha

s 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 th
at

 c
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
m

at
er

ia
l e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e.

   

A
ll 

kn
ow

n 
ac

tu
al

 o
r 

po
ss

ib
le

 li
tig

at
io

n 
an

d 
cl

ai
m

s,
 w

ho
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 w
he

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, h
av

e 
be

en
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 to
 

th
e 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
ep

or
tin

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 e
st

im
at

es
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 f

ai
r 

va
lu

es
 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
ne

ss
 o

f t
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

in
 m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

os
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
at

 fa
ir 

va
lu

e.
  

R
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 th
e 

id
en

tit
y 

of
 th

e 
F

un
d’

s 
re

la
te

d 
pa

rt
ie

s 
an

d 
al

l t
he

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 o
f w

hi
ch

 I 
am

 a
w

ar
e.

 I 
ha

ve
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

su
ch

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 a

nd
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f t
he

 fr
am

ew
or

k.
 

C
o

m
p

en
sa

to
ry

 a
d

d
ed

 y
ea

rs
 (

C
A

Y
s)

  

N
o 

em
pl

oy
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
 h

as
 m

ad
e 

a 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

to
 c

on
ve

rt
 C

A
Y

s 
in

to
 p

en
si

on
 s

er
vi

ce
.

S
u

b
se

q
u

en
t 

ev
en

ts

A
ll 

ev
en

ts
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t t
o 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t o

r 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, h

av
e 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
or

 d
is

cl
os

ed
. 

Page 27



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

18
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 4

 –
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 

P
ag

e
n

o
. 

3. T
o

p
ic

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

4.
 T

o
p

ic
  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1 
= 

L
o

w
 

2 
= 

M
ed

 
   

 3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

5.
 T

o
p

ic
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

 

A
g

re
ed

 
C

o
m

m
en

ts
 

D
at

e
 

6 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ny
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t l

ed
ge

r 
af

te
r 

it 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

ec
on

ci
le

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l 
le

dg
er

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

. 

3 
G

ro
up

 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

t 
Y

es
 

A
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
flo

w
s 

ha
s 

al
re

ad
y 

be
gu

n.
 

Ju
ne

 
20

12
 

6 
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
la

te
st

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 u
nq

uo
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f a
 fo

rm
al

 
pr

oc
es

s 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

ad
ju

st
in

g 
po

st
 b

al
an

ce
 s

he
et

 
ev

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
' a

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 
ac

co
un

ts
. 

3 
G

ro
up

 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

t 
Y

es
 

 
S

ep
t 

20
12

 

Page 28



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

19
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 5

 –
 G

lo
ss

ar
y 

A
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t

A
 s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f i

nt
er

na
l c

on
tr

ol
 p

re
pa

re
d 

by
 a

n 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 a

nd
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
  

O
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, I
 m

us
t g

iv
e 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

:  
!

 
w

he
th

er
 th

ey
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
 a

nd
 it

s 
sp

en
di

ng
 a

nd
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 in

 q
ue

st
io

n;
 a

nd
  

!
 

w
he

th
er

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

pr
op

er
ly

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

ru
le

s.
   

O
p

in
io

n
 

If 
I a

gr
ee

 th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

, I
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n.
 I 

is
su

e 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 o
pi

ni
on

 if
: 

!
 

I f
in

d 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 d
o 

no
t g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
; o

r 
!

 
I c

an
no

t c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
. 

M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

an
d

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

ce
 

T
he

 A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

 (
A

P
B

) 
de

fin
es

 th
is

 c
on

ce
pt

 a
s 

‘a
n 

ex
pr

es
si

on
 o

f t
he

 r
el

at
iv

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
or

 im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 m
at

te
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

. A
 m

at
te

r 
is

 m
at

er
ia

l i
f i

ts
 o

m
is

si
on

 w
ou

ld
 r

ea
so

na
bl

y 
in

flu
en

ce
 u

se
rs

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
ad

dr
es

se
es

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ito

r’s
 r

ep
or

t; 
al

so
 a

 m
is

st
at

em
en

t i
s 

m
at

er
ia

l i
f i

t w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
si

m
ila

r 
in

flu
en

ce
. M

at
er

ia
lit

y 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fo

r 
an

y 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
rim

ar
y 

st
at

em
en

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

r 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 it

em
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

em
. W

e 
ca

nn
ot

 d
ef

in
e 

m
at

er
ia

lit
y 

m
at

he
m

at
ic

al
ly

, a
s 

it 
ha

s 
bo

th
 n

um
er

ic
al

 a
nd

 n
on

-n
um

er
ic

al
 a

sp
ec

ts
’. 

 

T
he

 te
rm

 ‘m
at

er
ia

lit
y’

 a
pp

lie
s 

on
ly

 to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
av

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
du

tie
s 

un
de

r 
st

at
ut

e,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 g
iv

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

af
fe

ct
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

‘S
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

’ a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

es
e 

w
id

er
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
au

di
to

rs
 a

do
pt

 a
 le

ve
l o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 th
at

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
le

ve
l a

pp
lie

d 
to

 th
ei

r 
au

di
t i

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. S
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 h
as

 b
ot

h 
qu

al
ita

tiv
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s.

  

 

Page 29



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

20
 W

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

A
 w

ea
kn

es
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

xi
st

s 
w

he
n:

  
!

 
a 

co
nt

ro
l i

s 
de

si
gn

ed
, s

et
 u

p 
or

 u
se

d 
in

 s
uc

h 
a 

w
ay

 th
at

 it
 is

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
, o

r 
de

te
ct

 a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

, m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
qu

ic
kl

y;
 o

r 
 

!
 

a 
co

nt
ro

l n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

, o
r 

de
te

ct
 a

nd
 c

or
re

ct
, m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 q

ui
ck

ly
 is

 m
is

si
ng

.  

A
n 

im
po

rt
an

t w
ea

kn
es

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 is
 a

 w
ea

kn
es

s,
 o

r 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
th

at
, i

n 
m

y 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 ju

dg
em

en
t, 

ar
e 

im
po

rt
an

t e
no

ug
h 

th
at

 I 
sh

ou
ld

 r
ep

or
t t

he
m

 to
 y

ou
. 

 

Page 30



  If 
yo

u 
re

qu
ire

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

r 
in

 a
 la

ng
ua

ge
 o

th
er

 th
an

 E
ng

lis
h,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll:

  
08

44
 7

98
 7

07
0 

©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ud

ito
rs

 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. R
ep

or
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 n

on
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
 o

r 
of

fic
er

s.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

cc
ep

t n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

: 
!

 
an

y 
di

re
ct

or
/m

em
be

r 
or

 o
ffi

ce
r 

in
 th

ei
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
; o

r 
 

!
 

an
y 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
.  

           

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
1 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

19 SEPTEMBER 2011 

SUBJECT: MEMBERS TRAINING 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
  
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs Members of the training day on 20 October 2011, and 
provides details of the 2011 ‘Fundamentals’ training programme. 

 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 That Members attend the training day on 20 October 2011. 
 
2.2. That Members indicate if they wish to attend any of the ‘Fundamentals’ days. 
 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 The training day on 20 October 2011 will form part of the 2011 training plan, as 
previously agreed by the Pensions Committee.  

 
3.2 The training day will be presented by a team from Aon Hewitt, who take over as 

the Investment Strategy Consultants from the start of October 2011. In addition 
to meeting certain training objectives, this event will also provide Members with 
an opportunity to meet the Aon Hewitt team. The training session will cover the 
fundamentals of pension fund investment strategy. It will look at how 
investment objectives are determined in relation to pension fund liabilities, the 
tools that are employed to set investment strategy (e.g. asset/liability modelling, 
risk budgeting etc.) and how an investment strategy may be implemented and 
monitored. There will be a particular focus on the role played in this process by 
those serving in a trustee capacity in the LGPS. A full agenda will be circulated 
nearer the time. 

 
3.3 The 2011 training plan provides for access to the ‘Fundamentals’ training 

course, as delivered by the Local Government Employers (LGE) to any 
Member on request. The course provides an introduction to the LGPS, as well 
an overview of the wider pensions and investments world. It is recommended 
that Members who are newly appointed to the Pensions Committee should 
attend the full three-day course. More experienced Members may wish to 
attend one or more of the days to update their knowledge and skills. Full details 
of the course are to be found in the Appendix to this report. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 33



4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

4.1 The Statement of Investment Principles states that “an ongoing training 
programme (updated annually) for Committee Members [is provided] to ensure 
that decision-making is undertaken on an informed basis.”  There is a 
regulatory requirement for LGPS funds to state their compliance with the 
Myners Principles, which recommended that those serving as trustees of 
pension funds receive regular training to support them in their work. The 
training day is the third such event provided for Members during 2011 and, as 
before, will take place at the Cunard Building commencing 10am.  

 
4.2 The ‘Fundamentals’ course is spread over three days across October – 

December 2011 and is delivered at three locations: 
 

Leeds Day 1 12 October 
 Day 2 16 November 
 Day 3 01 December 
   
Cardiff Day 1 26 October 
 Day 2 23 November 
 Day 3 13 December 
   
London Day 1 19 October 
 Day 2 09 November 
 Day 3 07 December 
 
 

  

Any Member wishing to attend any of the days should contact Owen Thorne 
(owenthorne@wirral.gov.uk ; 0151 242 1301) who will make the necessary 
arrangements.  

 

5.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

5.1 Training of Members of the Pensions Committee is seen as integral to the good 
governance and effective risk management of Merseyside Pension Fund. 

 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

6.1 Other training opportunities are available to Members throughout the year. 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION  

7.1 Members are invited to submit ideas for future training events. 
 

8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

8.1 There are none. 

Page 34



 

9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

9.1 The cost of the training day is provided for within the training budget. 
 
9.2 The cost of the ‘Fundamentals’ course is £210 (plus VAT) per delegate per day 

(inclusive of lunch, refreshments and course materials), making the cost of 
attending the full course £630 (plus VAT). These costs are provided for in the 
training budget, in addition to any travel and overnight accommodation costs 
which may be incurred.  

 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none. 
 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none. 
 
11.2 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 (a)  Is an EIA required?   No 
 (b)  If ‘yes’, has one been completed? No 
 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 There are none. 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 There are none. 
 
FNCE/194/11 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Owen Thorne 
  Investment Officer 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1301 
  email:   owenthorne@wirral.gov.uk  
 
APPENDICES 

Local Government Group, Circular 250, ‘LGPS Trustee Training ‘Fundamentals’ 
 

REFERENCE MATERIAL 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Pensions Committee 
Pensions Committee 
Pensions Committee 
Pensions Committee 
Pensions Committee 
Pensions Committee 

29 March 2011 
11 January 2011 
27 September 2010 
28 June 2010 
23 March 2010 
13 January 2010 

 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 
19 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

SUBJECT LAPFF CONFERENCE 
WARD/S AFFECTED ALL 
REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER 

 

KEY DECISION NO 
 
 
1.0. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report recommends the Committee to approve attendance by the Chair at 

the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) Annual Conference, 
organised by PIRC, to be held in Bournemouth from 30 November to 2 
December 2011. 

 
2.0. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1. That attendance at the LAPFF conference by the Chair be approved. 
 
3.0. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1. MPF is a member of the LAPFF and the Chair of the Pensions Committee is on 

the Executive of LAPFF. 
 
4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1. MPF is a member of LAPFF and its Annual General Meeting and annual 

conference provides a forum for topical issues affecting Local Authority Pension 
Funds to be discussed and addressed. 

 
4.2. Attendance at this conference has traditionally been by the Chair of the 

Pensions Committee accompanied by an officer.  The Chair of the Pensions 
Committee is a Member of the Executive Committee of LAPFF. 

 
5.0. RELEVANT RISKS 
 
5.1. There are none arising out of this report. 
 
6.0. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
6.1. No other options were considered. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 43



7.0. CONSULTATION 
 
7.1. There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report. 
 
8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
8.1. There are none arising out of this report. 
 
9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. LAPFF membership allows for two free conference places.  Accommodation 

and travelling costs will be met from the existing budget. 
 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are none arising out if this report. 
 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. There are none arising out of this report. 
 
11.2. Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is not required. 
 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1.There are none arising out of this report. 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Ian Coleman 
  Director of Finance. 
  telephone: (0151-666-3056) 
  e-mail: iancoleman@wirral.gov.uk 
 
FNCE/167/11 
 
APPENDICES 
 
None 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 
 
None 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY 
Council Meeting Date 

Pensions Committee 27 September 2010 
Pensions Committee 22 September 2009 
Pensions Committee 29 September 2008 

 
Page 44



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

19 SEPTEMBER 2011 

SUBJECT: LGPS UPDATE 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

KEY DECISION  NO 
 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The report updates Members on legislative and other developments 
affecting the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That Members note the report. 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 There is a requirement for Members of the Pensions Committee to be kept 
up to date with legislative developments to carry out their decision making 
role in order to enable them to make informed decisions. 
 

4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

Ministerial Statement on Public Service Pensions 

4.1 The Chief Secretary to the Treasury made a Ministerial Statement to the 
House of Commons on 19 July 2011 concerning public service pension 
reform and the proposed member contribution increases. The statement 
confirms that future negotiations between the Government and the TUC in 
response to the Hutton recommendations will take place on a “Scheme by 
Scheme” basis.  

 
4.2 The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) issued a 

letter dated 28 July 2011 informing Local Government Employers of the tight 
timetable set for discussion and consultation relating to both the short and 
longer term scheme reforms. A copy of the letter is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 45



 Long Term Scheme Reform 
 
4.3     The focus for long term reform of all public sector schemes, including the 

Local Government Pension Scheme is to ensure the principles of fairness 
to employees and affordability to taxpayers. This is to be achieved by the 
following fundamental measures -:   

 
• the setting of LGPS specific cost ceilings to ensure schemes 

remain affordable; 
• normal retirement pensions for low and middle earners broadly as 

generous as the current arrangements; 
• no change in pension benefits to those closest to retirement; 
• each scheme should consider their preferred approach to 

managing risk. 
 

4.4 HM Treasury will set the cost ceilings for each scheme by 1 October 2011.  
Each scheme is required to establish initial specific proposals for reform 
using the appropriate ceiling by 31 October 2011. Detailed scheme design 
will then continue to allow the relevant legislation to be established during 
2012/13 for implementation with effect from 2015. 

 
Short Term Scheme Reform 

 
4.5  The Government announced in the 2010 Spending Review that public 

sector workers would be asked to contribute more to their pension, 
equivalent to an average increase in member contributions of 3.2%.  
Consultations are currently taking place on proposed increases to the 
Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme, National Health Service Scheme 
and the Teachers Pension Scheme to take effect from April 2012 
 

4.6 The Government has now recognised the particular distinction of the 
funded LGPS from other Public Sector Schemes and has granted it 
autonomy to formulate its own package of reforms to deliver the required 
£900m savings by 2015. 
 

4.7. The package must include protections from contribution increases for the 
lowest paid around the following parameters: 
 

• No increase to member contributions for those earning less than 
£15,000; 

• An increase limited to 1.5% of pay for those earning up to 
£21,000; 

• Increases for high earners no more than 6% of gross pay. 
 

4.8. On 20 July 2011 the Secretary of State, Rt Hon Eric Pickles wrote to the 
Local Government Group, (LGG) (copy letter attached at Appendix 2) 
inviting LGG to conduct discussions with the trade unions to establish by 
no later than 9 September 2011 its proposals to secure short term savings 
in time to allow for a formal statutory consultation exercise to begin at the 
end of September.   
 

Page 46



4.9. Thereafter the DCLG schedule is as follows:  
 

• 12 week statutory consultation from October to December on 
amendments to regulations; 

• consideration of responses and decisions by Ministers in early 
2012; 

• laying regulations as soon as possible; 
• short term reforms coming into force on 1 April 2012. 

 
4.10. MPF wrote on 10 August 2011 to the Local Government Group setting out 

views on alternative measures to the proposed 3.2% increase in member 
contributions.  A copy of the letter is attached at Appendix 3. 
 

4.11 The letter acknowledges that as there is a political imperative to increase 
contributions that a uniform increase of 1 per cent above the prescribed 
protections would be more acceptable to the membership. This would 
alleviate the financial pressures of higher increases and reduce the 
likelihood of members choosing to leave the scheme.   
 

4.12 If it is deemed necessary to realise further savings MPF would advocate 
that the next scheme adjustment would be to align the LGPS normal 
retirement age with increases to the state retirement age.  

 
4.13 Members could still choose to retire from age 60 but would receive 

reduced pensions to take account of early payment. This is in accordance 
with the Government policy that people should work longer to re-address 
the balance of time spent in retirement due to increased longevity. It was 
also the preferred option of the MPF membership when consulted in the 
latest scheme survey.   
 

4.14 MPF acknowledges that another adjustment could be to amend the 
accrual rate, this could be seen as a simple and timely method of 
delivering the required saving of £900m.   

 
4.15. However, this change would manifest another significant consequence; in 

particular it would reduce the number of retiring members electing to 
convert annual pension to the maximum available tax free cash. This 
would adversely impact on savings already assumed in assessing 
employer contribution rates, leading to increased employer costs. 
 
HMRC Changes to Annual and Lifetime Allowances; Scheme Impacts 

 
4.16. This matter was previously considered by the Committee at its meeting on 

29 March 2011 (Minute 87 refers). The Finance Act 2011 received Royal 
Assent on 19 July 2011. The Act implements the changes to tax relief on 
pension savings  and in particular reduces the annual allowance from 
£255,000 to £50,000 from 6 April 2011. The annual allowance is the 
maximum amount by which a person’s pension savings can increase 
based on the period 1 April to 31 March without incurring a tax charge.  

Page 47



 
4.17. MPF will be writing to members whose pension savings exceed the annual 

allowance, within MPF, with information as to whether or not the tax 
charge will be payable and the amount of the charge. The information 
must be provided by the 6 October following the end of the tax year. 
However, in the 2011/12 tax year the time limit has been extended to 6 
October 2013 to facilitate the new administrative processes. 

 
4.18. Where a member exceeds the annual allowance in any tax year, any 

unused allowance from the three previous years will be carried forward to 
offset the excess pension savings. The charge for any member whose 
pension savings still exceeds the annual allowance after carry forward will 
be at the marginal rate of income tax. 

 
4.19.   Members can request that their liability to pay the annual allowance 

charge is met out of their scheme benefits where the charge exceeds 
£2000. The regulations will require amendment to permit the reduction to 
the member’s pension and guidance will be needed to specify how the 
reduction will be implemented and reflected in the pension benefits.  

    
4.20. There are limited exemptions from the annual allowance in the year of 

death or if the member satisfies the serious ill health exemption in 
accordance with the Finance Act requirements. However there are 
discrepancies between the definitions of ill health under the LGPS 
Regulations and the Finance Act relating to capability to undertake gainful 
employment and prescribed retirement ages. DCLG has agreed with 
HMRC that if the Independent Registered Medical Practitioner certifies 
that the person meets both the LGPS and the Finance Act criteria for ill 
health the exemption will apply to the LGPS. As such MPF has amended 
the ill health certificates and guidance notes to allow doctors to provide the 
required opinion on serious ill health.   

   
4.21. From 6 April 2012 the lifetime allowance is reduced from £1.8 million to 

£1.5 million. The lifetime allowance is the maximum amount of pension 
savings an individual may have from registered pension schemes. A 
member may apply to protect their current pension savings against the 
reduction in the lifetime allowance. The application must be received by 
HMRC by 5 April 2012 and there is no entitlement to accrue further 
pension benefits. 

 
5.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

5.1 If the outcome of the short term scheme reforms proves to be too costly 
for individual members it will rapidly increase the number of members who 
will choose to opt out of the LGPS, as it will be reasoned as “unaffordable” 
or at worst, not worthwhile.  

 
5.2 Not only, would this not meet the objective of increasing income but it 

would once again accelerate the maturity of the Fund; irrevocably 
changing the membership profile of the LGPS. 

Page 48



 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

6.1 None. 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION  

7.1 MPF intends to consult further with all stakeholders on the proposals for 
change to the scheme when information is available. 

 
8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

8.1 None arising from this report. 
 

9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

9.1 The outcome of the Government considerations and the consultation with 
stakeholders on the long term and short term reform of the Pension Scheme  
including increases in employee contribution rates may have significant 
impacts on the LGPS, employers and members. 

 
9.2 Depending on the outcome of the reforms there will be increases in the 

resources required to deliver the relevant communications, administrative 
processes and changes to systems.  
  

9.3 The option for members to request the Pension Fund to pay the annual 
allowance charges to HMRC will result in greater administrative complexity.  
 

10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report. 
 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report. 
 
11.2 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 (a)  Is an EIA required?   No  
 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

12.1    None arising from this report. 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 None arising from this report. 
 
FNCE/191/11 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: YVONNE CADDOCK 
  PRINCIPAL PENSION OFFICER 
  telephone:  (0151-242-1333) 
  email:       yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 

Page 49



 
 APPENDICES 

1 - Department for Communities and Local Government letter 28 July 2011 to 
Local Government Employers and Pension Fund Administering Authorities 

2 - Secretary of State letter of 20 July 2011 to the Local Government Group. 
3 -  Merseyside Pension Fund letter of 10 August 2011 to the Local Government 

Group 
 

REFERENCE MATERIAL 

LGE Bulletin 84 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

LGPS Update Reports presented to each meeting 

of the Pensions Committee 

 

 

Page 50



 
 
 
  
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME 

 

1. With the agreement of Ministers, this letter sets out the initial and medium 
term context for the Local Government Pension Scheme in England and 
Wales, following the Ministerial Written Statement by the Chief Secretary to 
the Treasury on 19 July 2011 to the House of Commons, and indicates 
anticipated next steps. 

Ministerial Written Statement on Public Service Pension Schemes 

2. The Chief Secretary’s Statement to Parliament sets out the basis upon which 
the Government now intends to proceed to implement policies first 
announced in the Autumn Spending Review on employee contributions, and 
on taking forward initial scheme specific discussions for long term pension 
reform announced in Budget 2010. 

3. The Government has accepted the broad principles set out in Lord Hutton’s 
final report as a basis for consultation.  Against the high level discussions 
held with the TUC, scheme specific discussions are now to take place on 
taking the principles forward.  Long term reforms are unlikely to come into 
force before 2015. 

 
4. The Government’s position is that public service pensions will remain among 

the very best available, providing a guaranteed pension level for all 
employees.  However, given that people are living much longer and so 
pensions become more expensive, people need to work for longer before 
drawing their pension. Employees are, therefore, being asked to ensure a 
fairer balance between what employees pay and what other taxpayers have 
to pay.  The processes for taking this forward are described in more detail 
below in paragraphs 6- 9.  For the longer term reform timetable, paragraphs 
10-12 summarise the anticipated next steps. 

TBJ Crossley 
Deputy Director 
Workforce, Pay and Pensions 
Zone 5/F5 Eland House 
Bressenden Place 
London SW1E 5DU 
 
Direct line: 0303 44 42167 
 
Web site: www.communities.gov.uk 
 
28 July 2011 
 

 
 
 
Dear Colleague 
 
 

Page 51



 

5. The principle elements for public service pension scheme reforms, as set out 
in the Statement (which can be accessed at http://www.hm-
treasury.gov.uk/press_83_11.htm; a copy is attached for ease of reference), 
are as follows:- 
• central talks between Ministers and the trade unions will continue 

alongside scheme-specific discussions; 
• scheme-specific discussions are now to begin on wider reform arising 

from Lord Hutton’s report; 
• cost ceilings will be set by 1 October by Treasury, based on Government 

Actuary’s Department advice; 
• schemes will have the freedom to design the future shape of reforms 

within the cost ceiling and are subject to Treasury’s approval of each 
scheme’s longevity risk management arrangements; 

• using the LGPS’ agreed cost ceiling,  initial scheme specific proposals for 
reform in headline terms are required to be established by the end of 
October; 

• detailed scheme designs discussions will then continue to allow the 
relevant legislation being introduced in the Parliamentary session 2012/13 
to allow for a 2015 implementation date. 

 
Employee Contributions  

 
6. The position of the Local Government Pension Scheme in England and 

Wales, in relation to employee contribution rate tariff reform, is specifically 
clarified in the Written Statement, as follows:- 

 
“…the Government recognises that the funded nature of the scheme puts it in 
a different position and will discuss whether there are alternative ways to 
deliver some or all of the savings.” 

 
7. Following that clarification, the Local Government Group has now been 

invited by the Secretary of State to conduct discussions with the local 
government trade unions to establish a package of measures to secure the 
necessary short term savings in the LGPS equivalent to the 3.2% percentage 
point increase in other schemes.  The package will include protections from 
contribution increases for the lowest paid.  Other issues important to the long 
term sustainability of the LGPS may also be discussed. 

8. The Secretary of State has requested the outcome of the discussions to be 
reported to him by 9 September in time to allow the formal, statutory 
consultation exercise to begin by the end of September. 

 
9. The onward timetable from that point, as required by section 7 of the 

Superannuation Act 1972, is as follows:- 
 

a. a 12 week statutory consultation exercise in October, November and 
December 2011 on amending regulations; 

b. consideration of responses and decisions by Ministers in early 2012; 
c. making and laying of the amending regulations as soon as possible 

thereafter; and 
d. scheme changes coming into force on 1 April 2012. 

 
10. In parallel, the Scheme’s Policy Review Group has initially discussed the 

context for these discussions, as indeed has the Local Government Pensions 
Committee’s Officer Advisory Group.  A pre-arranged meeting of the Local 
Government Group and the local government trade unions took place on 27 

Page 52



July.  A meeting of the Policy Review Group is now scheduled for 15 August.  
The extended consultation period will allow a continuing series of discussions 
across all Scheme interests as part of the process to ensure the most 
effective outcome for the Scheme as a whole, including additional meetings of 
the Policy Review Group. 

Post-Hutton Reforms 

11. The Chief Secretary’s Written Statement sets out an indicative timetable for 
the anticipated scheme-specific discussions now to take place.  The 
Government intends to set individual scheme cost-ceilings to ensure on-going 
affordability and sustainability.  These will replace the previously envisaged 
‘cap and share’ mechanism for the LGPS. The data stream aspects and 
adjustment to contribution provisions will remain in place or be modified as 
necessary. 

12. The cost ceilings will be based on Lord Hutton’s proposals, but will go further 
and ensure that the pension individuals receive at normal pension age will be 
broadly as generous for low and middle earners as it is now. The ceilings will 
ensure that public service pension schemes remain affordable and 
sustainable, by setting a limit on the contribution made by employers and 
ultimately, the taxpayer. Further details on how the cost ceilings are to be set 
will follow. 

13. From that position, Schemes are being invited to provide initial reform 
proposals in headline terms by the end of October.  The programme 
envisaged then is to finalise detailed Scheme design elements so that the 
relevant legislation can be introduced in the 2012-13 Parliamentary session.  
This will allow full implementation for April 2015. 

14. This clearly requires a tight focus on the LGPS Policy Review Group and the 
supportive bodies around it who contribute and who have commented so 
much expertise to the present structure and Hutton process.  

15. If, in the meantime, Scheme interested parties would like discuss any aspect 
of this work in relation to the LGPS, please contact Bob Holloway at 
Robert.holloway@communities.gsi.gov.uk to arrange a discussion.   

 
 
 
TBJ CROSSLEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



 
 
List of Addressees 
 

The Chief Executive of: 
 County Councils (England) 
 District Councils (England) 
 Metropolitan Borough Councils (England) 
 Unitary Councils (England) 
 County and County Borough Councils in Wales 
 London Borough Councils 
 South Yorkshire Pension Authority 
 Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 
 Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  
 Bradford Metropolitan City Council 
 South Tyneside Metropolitan Borough Council 
 Wolverhampton Metropolitan Borough Council  
 London Pension Fund Authority 
 Environment Agency 
  
Town Clerk, City of London Corporation  
Clerk, South Yorkshire PTA 
Clerk, West Midlands PTA 
 
Policy Review Group members 
Fire and Rescue Authorities in England and Wales 
Police Authorities in England and Wales 
Audit Commission 
National Probation Service for England and Wales 
 
 
Local Government Group  
LGPC 
Association of Colleges 
 
ALACE 
PPMA  
SOLACE 
CIPFA  
 
Association of Consulting Actuaries 
Association of District Treasurers 
Society of County Treasurers 
Society of Welsh Treasurers 
Society of Metropolitan Treasurers 
Society of London Treasurers 
 
Society of Local Council Clerks 
 
Trades Union Congress  UCATT 
UNISON   GMB 
NAEIAC   NAPO 
UNITE 

 
 
GAD 
SPPA 
DOE (NI) 
  
 

 
Financial Services Authority (FSA) 
Investment Management Association (IMA) 
Association of British Insurers (ABI) 

 

Page 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



P
age 58

T
his page is intentionally left blank



!
!
!
Sir!Merrick!Cockell!
Local!Government!Group! ! ! ! ! !
Local!Government!House!
Smith!Square! !
London!
SWIP!3HZ! !
! ! !
!

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME REFORM 2011 

Wirral!Council!is!responsible!for!the!administration!of!the!Merseyside!Pension!Fund!which!is!
part!of! the!Local!Government!Pension!Scheme! (LGPS).!The!Merseyside!Pension!Fund!deals!
with!the!LGPS!pension!administration!and!investments!on!behalf!of!the!5!Merseyside!District!
Councils,!and!over!100!other!employers!on!Merseyside!and!elsewhere!throughout!the!UK.!
!
The! Fund! has! over! 50,000! active! contributing!members,! 41,359! pensioners! and! just! over!
34,000!deferred!pensioners.!It!is!responsible!for!the!investment!and!accounting!for!a!pension!
fund!of!£5billion.!
!
The!Fund!has!formally!responded!to!all!of!the!recent!consultations!on!public!sector!pension!
reform,! and! wishes! to! provide! further! comment! ahead! of! the! 12! week! statutory!
consultation!–!specifically!in!regard!the!short"term!savings!equivalent!to!a!3.2%!increase!to!
member!contributions.!

!

1/! MINIMAL!INCREASE!TO!MEMBER!CONTRIBUTION!RATES!

We!maintain!the!view!that!any!increase!to!employee!contributions,!will!rapidly!increase!
the!number!of!members!who!will!choose!to!opt"out!of!the!Scheme!as!it!will!be!reasoned!
as!“unaffordable”!or!at!worst,!not!worthwhile.!

The!proposed!protections!for!those!members!earning!up!to!£21,000!per!annum,!means!
that!a!greater!contribution!burden!will!be!made!by!the!“middle”!earners!of!our!Fund.!!

This! year! we! have! already! seen! a! 48%! increase! in! the! incidence! of! enquiries! from!
members! into! the! affordability! of! scheme! participation! and! also! the! perception! of!
diluted!pension!promises.!

If! there! is! a! political! imperative! that! our! members! are! asked! to! demonstrate! an!
increased!contribution!to!the!Scheme,!a!minimal,!uniform!1%! increase!would!be!more!
acceptable!to!our!membership.!Particularly,!in!a!period!of!pay!freezes!and!reductions!to!
net!pay!from!April!2012,!due!to!the!increases!in!National!Insurance!contributions.!

!

   

 Direct Line: 0151 242-1390 

Please ask for: Yvonne Caddock 

Date: 10 August 2011 

Page 59



2/! NORMAL!RETIREMENT!AGE!

In!addition!to!a!1%!uniform!increase!to!member!contributions,!the!Fund!would!advocate!
that!the!next!Scheme!adjustment!would!be!to!align!the!Schemes!Normal!Retirement!Age!
(NRA)!with!that!of!the!increases!in!State!Pension!Age!(SPA).!

However,! the!option! for!members! to! take!a! reduced!pension! from!age!60! should! still!
continue,!giving!members!more!choice!over!their!personal!circumstances!and!the!value!
of!benefits!payable.!!The!appropriate!reduction!factors!would!apply!from!the!increased!
NRA,!thus!maintaining!a!link!to!affordability!over!time.!!

!

3/!!ACCRUAL!RATE!FOR!YEARS!2012"2015!

Another!option!to!make!the!required!savings!is!the!reduction!of!the!accrual!rate!on!the!
current!benefit!package.! !Moving! the!accrual! rate!back! towards! the!pre"2008! level!of!
80ths!for!all!active!members!during!the!next!three!years,!would!demonstrate!savings!to!
each!Funds!liability!funding!profile.!

However,! this! change!would!manifest! another! significant! consequence;! particularly! it!
would!reduce!the!number!of!retiring!members!electing!to!convert!annual!pension!to!the!
maximum! available! tax! free! cash.! ! This! would! adversely! impact! on! savings! already!
assumed!in!assessing!employer!contribution!rates,!leading!to!increased!employer!costs.!

The!demographics!of! the!LGPS!mean! that!50%!of! its!membership!receive! low!pay!and!
have!short!service,!a!reduction!in!the!rate!of!accrual!could!lead!members!to!question!the!
value! of! contributing! to! the! scheme,! due! to!meagre! awards! of! benefits;! abdicating!
personal!responsibility!and!relying!on!means!tested!benefits!for!support!in!retirement.!

!

In!a!survey!of!the!Fund’s!membership!as!part!of!our!response!to!Lord!Hutton’s!consultation!
(1,952! respondents)! the!preferred!option! for! scheme! reform!was! to! increase! the!normal!
retirement!age!rather!than!adjusting!the!accrual!rate,!if!it!were!proven!that!reforms!where!
deemed!necessary!to!combat!the!rising!costs!of!pension!provision.!

The! Merseyside! Pension! Fund! strongly! believes! that! in! order! to! maintain! the! active!
membership!base,!ensuring!continuing!financial!viability,!any!necessary!short!term!reforms!
should! take! the! form! of! a! limited! contribution! increase! and! alignment! of! the! Scheme’s!
normal!retirement!age!with!increases!to!state!pension!age.!

Yours!sincerely!

!

Ian!Coleman!

Director!of!Finance!

!

cc. Bob!Holloway,!DCLG!

! Page 60



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 
19 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

SUBJECT: ANNUAL EMPLOYERS’ CONFERENCE 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

KEY DECISION  NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs Members of the arrangements for the annual Employers’ 
Conference to be held on Thursday 17 November 2011. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That Members attend the Annual Employers Conference. 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 The value of holding an annual conference was recognised following the 
successful re-introduction of this event in November 1997, with attendees 
appreciating the opportunity to hear presentations on topical issues, and 
receive reports on current Fund activity and performance. 

 
4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

4.1 The 2011 conference will again be held at Aintree Racecourse on Thursday 17 
November 2011. 

 
4.2 In addition to the annual reports on investment performance and the 

administration of the Pension Fund over the previous year, a presentation will 
be given by Paul Middleman from Mercer, the Actuary and Bob Holloway from 
the Department for Communities and Local Government. 
 

4.3 The draft programme commences with coffee and registration at 9.30am, with a 
start time of 10am. There will be an open forum for questions and an 
anticipated finish time of 1.30pm. Lunch will be provided for delegates. 
 

4.4 Members are invited to attend the Conference and further details will be 
circulated to all Members of this Committee as soon as arrangements are 
finalised. 

 
5.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

5.1  There are none rising directly from this report.  
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 61



 
6.0  OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

6.1 Other venues were considered including a cost comparison to assess value 
for money. 

 
7.0  CONSULTATION 

7.1 An online survey was taken of previous delegates in 2010 and 87% rated 
Aintree Racecourse as an excellent or very good venue.  The location, public 
transport links and overall quality of Aintree Racecourse was commended. 

 
8.0  IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

8.1  None arising from this report. 
 

9.0  RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

9.1 The cost of holding the Conference is estimated at £5,000; provision for which 
is contained within the budget.  
 

10.0  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

10.1   None arising from this report. 
 
 
11.0  EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1  None arising from this report. 
 
11.2  Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
  (a)  Is an EIA required?  Yes Completed on 17 August 2011 
 

Access for delegates with limited mobility was assessed; and appropriate 
emergency arrangements are in place.  A hearing loop and relay screens will 
be provided for people with sensory impairments. 

 
12.0  CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

12.1    None arising from this report. 
 
 
13.0  PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

13.1  None arising from this report. 
 
FNCE/190/11 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Yvonne Caddock 
  Principal Pension Officer 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1333 
  email:   yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 
APPENDICES 

NONE 

Page 62



 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

NONE 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  

Pensions Committee 

Pensions Committee 

Pensions Committee 

Date 

27 September 2010 

22 September 2009 

29 September 2008 

 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

19 SEPTEMBER 2011 

SUBJECT: BANK AND OTHER AUTHORISED 
SIGNATORIES 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

KEY DECISION NO 

  
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report sets out proposed changes to authorised signatories at Merseyside 
Pension Fund, following the completion of the restructuring. 

 
1.2 The report describes the different requirements for different institutions and 

functions, including the banks, custodian, and overseas pensions payment 
agent, as well as the granting of power of attorney where appropriate.  

 
1.3 The report also refers to operational decisions regarding authorised signatories 

for other transactions and procedures, by officers nominated by the Director of 
Finance. This report avoids doubt by organisations undertaking due diligence 
on MPF as an investee company or as a financial services provider, or for 
overseas jurisdiction. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 That the following officers be authorised to open, close and amend bank 
accounts, authorise instructions for the payment of benefits and for investment 
transactions, for the accounts with the bankers (Royal Bank of Scotland), with 
the Global Custodian (State Street), and with other financial institutions for the 
purpose of making and redeeming deposits, “open” cheques, and counter sign 
cheques over £10,000:  

Agenda Item 9

Page 65



 
 
 
  Director of Finance     Ian E. Coleman 
  Deputy Director of Finance   David L.H. Taylor-Smith 
  Head of Financial Services   Thomas W. Sault 
  Head of Benefits, Revenues 
   and Customer Services    Malcolm J. Flanagan 
  Head of IT Services    Geoffrey W. Paterson 
  Head of Support Services    Michael J. Fowler 
  Principal Pensions Officer   Yvonne M. Caddock 
  Members Services Manager   Margaret M Rourke 
  Members Services Manager  Susan J. Roberts 
  Operations Manager   Guy W. Hayton 
  Group Accountant    Donna S. Smith 
 
2.2 That Members confirm  that the following officers have powers to authorise 

investment decisions and relevant documentation, but not to authorise the 
transfer of money: 

   
  Head of Pension Fund   Peter J. Wallach 
  Senior Investment Manager  Leyland K. Otter 
  Investment Manager   Patrick G. Dowdall 
   
2.3 That Members note that, for the purposes of due diligence verification, Patrick 

G. Dowdall, Investment Manager, is designated an authorised officer.  
 
2.4 That Members confirm, for the avoidance of doubt, that the Director of Finance 

can designate officers of MPF to exercise powers of attorney on behalf of MPF 
and Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council, which, from 1July 2011, requires two 
of the following officers:  

 
  Head of Pension Fund   Peter J. Wallach 
  Senior Investment Manager  Leyland K. Otter 
  Principal Pensions Officer   Yvonne M. Caddock 
    Investment Manager   Patrick G. Dowdall 
 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 The bank signatories were last approved by the Pensions Committee on 27 
June 2011.  At that stage, two appointments to the new structure were still 
outstanding.  Subsequently Donna Suzanne Smith has been appointed as 
Group Accountant and Susan Jean Roberts has been appointed as Members 
Services Manager. 

Page 66



 
4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

4.1    The current approved signatories to the Royal Bank of Scotland and State 
Street accounts are:- 
 

  Director of Finance     Ian E. Coleman 
  Deputy Director of Finance   David L.H. Taylor-Smith 
  Head of Financial Services   Thomas W. Sault 
  Head of Benefits, Revenues 
   and Customer Services    Malcolm J. Flanagan 
  Head of IT Services    Geoffrey W. Paterson 
  Head of Support Services    Michael J. Fowler 
  Principal Pensions Officer   Yvonne M. Caddock 
  Members Services Manager   Margaret M Rourke 
  Operations Manager   Guy W. Hayton 
 
4.2 For the accounts with the bankers (Royal Bank of Scotland) and the Global 

Custodian (State Street) approval is requested for the following signatories:- 
 
  Director of Finance     Ian E. Coleman 
  Deputy Director of Finance   David L.H. Taylor-Smith 
  Head of Financial Services   Thomas W. Sault 
  Head of Benefits, Revenues 
  and Customer Services    Malcolm J. Flanagan 
  Head of IT Services    Geoffrey W. Paterson 
  Head of Support Services    Michael J. Fowler 
  Principal Pensions Officer   Yvonne M. Caddock 
  Members Services Manager   Margaret M Rourke 
  Members Services Manager  Susan J. Roberts 
  Operations Manager   Guy W. Hayton 
  Group Accountant    Donna S. Smith 
 
4.3   These responsibilities will include powers to open, close and amend bank 

accounts, authorise instructions for the payment of benefits and for 
investment transactions, for the accounts with the bankers (Royal Bank of 
Scotland), and with the Global Custodian (State Street), and with other 
financial institutions for the purpose of making and redeeming deposits, 
“open” cheques, and counter sign cheques over £10,000:  

 
4.4  For reasons of internal control, officers are empowered to authorise 

 investment decisions and relevant documentation, but without powers to 
 authorise the transfer of monies: 

 
  Head of Pension Fund   Peter J. Wallach 
  Senior Investment Manager  Leyland K. Otter 
  Investment Manager   Patrick G. Dowdall 
 
4.5 Other officers can make investment decisions up to their limits as specified in 

the Compliance Manual. Following the staffing changes, an updated version 
of the Compliance Manual should be presented to the Pensions Committee in 
November 2011. 

  

Page 67



4.6 Authorisation of the routine monthly pension payroll is subject to separate 
internal arrangements by personnel nominated under the operational 
responsibilities of the Director of Finance. These cover both the release of the  

 monthly domestic BACSTEL  payments and the release via Citi bank of the 
 payment of pensions overseas. 
 
4.7 On 27 June 2011, Pensions Committee confirmed that the Director of Finance 

can designate officers of MPF to exercise powers of attorney, with a minimum 
of two signatures from four designated officers and that the following officers 
shall have such powers: 

 
  Head of Pension Fund   Peter J. Wallach 
  Senior Investment Manager  Leyland K. Otter 
  Principal Pensions Officer   Yvonne M. Caddock 
    Investment Manager    Patrick G. Dowdall 
 
4.8 Investee companies, financial services providers and overseas jurisdictions 

perform due diligence work on MPF as an investor organisation. To facilitate 
the provision of relevant information, it is proposed that in addition to those 
mentioned in paragraph 4.2 above, the following officer can duly certify: 

 
  Investment Manager    Patrick G. Dowdall  
 
5.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
5.1  Without the appropriate number of authorising officers, there is a risk of 
 delayed settlement of trades. This could manifest itself both as financial risk, 
 as there could be a cost to delayed settlement, and as a reputational risk to 
 MPF in financial markets. 
 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

6.1 The option of operating with fewer authorisers, would increase the dangers of 
transactions in financial markets not settling in a timely manner due to delays 
in their authorisation. 

 
7.0 CONSULTATION  

7.1  No consultation took place with other organisations or stakeholders.  . 
 
8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

8.1  None arising from this report. 
 
9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

9.1 There are no additional resource implications in this proposal.  
 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
10.1  None arising from this report. 

Page 68



 

11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report. 
 
11.2 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 
 (a)  Is an EIA required?   No  
 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 There are none within these proposals for change, 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 None arising from this report. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Ian Coleman 
  Director of Finance 
  telephone:  0151 666 3056 
  email:   iancoleman@wirral.gov.uk 
 
FNCE/168/11 
 
APPENDICES 

None 
 

REFERENCE MATERIAL 

List of Authorised Signatories as at 1 April 2011 
  
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting Date 

Pensions Committee 

Pensions Committee  

Cabinet 

Pensions Committee  

Pensions Committee 

27 June 2011 

29 March 2011 

17 March 2011 

22 September 2009 

18 June 2009 

 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 
19 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

SUBJECT: PROFESSIONAL PENSIONS AWARDS 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

 

KEY DECISION?  NO 
  
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report informs Members that Merseyside Pension Fund has been 
shortlisted by Professional Pensions in the Premier Scheme of the Year (over 
£2.5bn) category and to note attendance at the awards by the Chair of the 
Committee. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That Committee notes the shortlisting of MPF and attendance at the awards by 
the Chair. 

 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 The shortlisting reflects the continued all-round quality of service provided by 
MPF to its employers and members.  

 
4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

4.1   Applicants were assessed against the following criteria: 
 

• Administration: Schemes should demonstrate performance against service 
level agreements, set out their reporting strategy and their use of IT. 

• Communication: Judges will be looking for clarity and at the methods being 
used - newsletters, meetings, roadshows etc. 

• Investment Management: Schemes should set out their investment strategies 
and show performance over one, three, five and ten years. 

• Governance: Entrants should set out their voting records on investments and 
the steps they have taken to implement social, environmental and ethical 
criteria. 

• Education: Judges will want to know the measures schemes have taken to 
educate members and raise their financial awareness and explain why they 
need to save for the future. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 71



 
4.2 Complimentary places were available at the awards ceremony for shortlisted 

applicants. In view of the award event taking place prior to Committee, the 
Chair confirmed his availability to attend and, as he was already in London for 
a LAPFF executive meeting, the only additional cost was overnight 
accommodation. 

 

5.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

5.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

6.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION  

7.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There 
are no implications for partner organisations arising out of this report. 

 

8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

8.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 

9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

9.1 The cost overnight accommodation was met from the Pension Fund budget. 
 
 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None 
 
 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None 
 
11.2 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 (a)  Is an EIA required?   No  
 
 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 None 
 
FNCE/186/11 

Page 72



 
REPORT AUTHOR: Peter Wallach 
  Head of Pension Fund 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
 
APPENDICES 

NONE 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

NONE 

 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 
19 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

SUBJECT: TUNSGATE SQUARE SHOPPING CENTRE 

“GREEN APPLE” AWARD 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
  
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. This report advises Members that Tunsgate Square Shopping Centre, 
Guildford, part of the Merseyside Pension Fund property portfolio, has been 
identified for a “Green Apple” environment award. 

 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That Committee notes the environmental award in respect of Tunsgate Square. 
 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 The award reflects progress made by MPF and the property managers in 
improving the environmental performance of the property assets. 

 
4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

4.1 CBRE has advised that they have recently received a “Green Apple Award” for 
environmental work at Tunsgate Square Shopping Centre.  This is a coveted 
award and is highly regarded in the environmental field. 

4.2. The Green Organisation is an independent, non-political, non-profit making 
environment group dedicated to recognising, rewarding and promoting 
environmental best practice around the world.  It is funded by membership and 
sponsorship from the Environment Agency, the Chartered Institute of 
Environmental Health, the Chartered Institution of Wastes Management, and 
other professional bodies.  

 

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 75



4.3. The Green Apple Awards for Environmental Best Practice were launched in 
1994, initially aimed only at local authorities but later including commerce and 
industry.  They are open to everyone from individuals to international 
conglomerates. The Green Organisation is keen to point out that an award 
does not mean successful companies are completely green – because none of 
us are, but they hope that by receiving recognition for the things being done 
right, winners may go on to improve their environmental performance in other 
ways.  

4.4. The award ceremony is on 14 November 2011, in the House of Commons 
when an announcement will be made as to which award Tunsgate Square 
Shopping Centre has won. 

5.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

5.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

6.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION  

7.1. None required. 
 

8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

8.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 

9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

9.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11.2 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 (a)  Is an EIA required?   No  
 
 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 No direct implications.  However, MPF is a member of the Institutional Investor 
Group on Climate Change and support for Responsible Investment encourages 
an awareness of environmental issues by investment managers. 

 

Page 76



 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 None 
 
 
FNCE/178/11 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Peter Wallach 
  Head of Pension Fund 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
 
APPENDICES 

 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

19 SEPTEMBER 2011 

SUBJECT: ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION 

MACK TRADING 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO  

HOLDER: 

 

 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs Members of a decision taken under delegation, to approve 
the application received from Mack Trading (Heaton Park) to Merseyside 
Pension Fund as a Transferee Admission Body. The company has secured the 
operation of Bowring Golf Course contract, for the period 1 September 2011 to 
31 August 2031. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That Members note the approval of the application for admission to the 
Merseyside Pension Fund of Mack Trading. 

 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 The application for admission meets the prescribed regulatory and financial 
requirements under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations. The 
appropriate supporting documentation has been received and approved.  All 
parties to the agreement are legally enforced to comply with the governance 
policy of Merseyside Pension Fund. 

 

4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

 
4.1  The application is to provide pension provision for five transferred members 

who wish to continue to participate in the local government pension scheme. 
 
4.2 Mack Trading is a private company limited by shares and the principal activity 

of the company is computer related activities. 
 

4.3 The principal activity for Mack Trading (Heaton Park) during 2009/2010 was 
that of golf course management. 

 

Agenda Item 16

Page 79



 

5.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

5.1 The potential risk of financial loss resulting from the admittance of the 
company is mitigated by virtue of Regulation 38(3) (a) of the Local 
Government Pension (Administration) Regulations 2008. Knowsley Council 
would be responsible for any outstanding contributions on the closure of the 
body which may not be recoverable from the contractor or parent company.  

 

6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

6.1 The contractor’s preferred route in accordance with the Statutory Best Value 
Authorities Staff Transfer (Pension) Direction 2007 is to secure admitted body 
status as an alternative to the provision of a comparable pension scheme.  

 

7.0 CONSULTATION  

7.1 No consultation required as staff retained access to the LGPS. 
 

8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

8.1 None arising from this report. 
 
9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

9.1 The latest Financial Statement to 30 September 2009 of Mack Trading (Heaton 
Park) has been approved.  

 
9.2 The transfer of past service liabilities is to proceed on a fully funded basis which 

will have no immediate impact on the Knowsley Council current assessed 
contribution rate.  

 
9.3  Five Knowsley Council employees transferred under TUPE Regulations to the 

alternative employer. 
 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 The legal documents to be drafted and approved by the Director of Law. 
 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are no equalities implications as employees retain access to the LGPS. 
 
11.2 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 (a)  Is an EIA required?   No 
 (b)  If ‘yes’, has one been completed?  
 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 None arising from this report. 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 None arising from this report. 

Page 80



 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: YVONNE CADDOCK 
  PRINCIPAL PENSION OFFICER 
  telephone:  (0151-242-1333) 
  email:       yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
FNCE/187/11 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

The report produced by Mercer the Actuary, dated 11 May 2011, was used in 
producing this report. 
 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
 
Council Meeting   

  

 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

19 SEPTEMBER 2011 

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF GOVERNANCE & RISK 

WORKING PARTY 14 JULY 2011 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
  
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the minutes of the 
Governance & Risk Working Party (GRWP) held on 14 July 2011. 

 
1.2 The minutes of the GRWP on 14 July 2011, contain exempt information. This is 

by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That Members approve the minutes of the GRWP meeting on 14 July 2011 
which are attached as an exempt appendix on this agenda 

 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 The approval of GRWP minutes by Pensions Committee forms part of the 
governance arrangements of Merseyside Pension Fund. These arrangements 
were approved by Pensions Committee as part of the Governance Statement 
on 27 June 2011. 

 

4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

4.1 The GRWP meets twice a year to allow Members and their advisers to consider 
governance and risk issues, relating to MPF, in greater detail. 

 
5.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

5.1 Not relevant for this report. 
 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

6.1 Not relevant for this report. 

Agenda Item 19

Page 83



 
7.0 CONSULTATION  

7.1 Not relevant for this report. 
 

8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

8.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report 
 

9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

9.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
FNCE/179/11 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Peter Wallach 
  Head of Pension Fund 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 

Attendees of the working party are shown in appendix 1 together with declarations of 
interest.   
The minutes of the GRWP held on 14 July 2011 are attached as an exempt 
appendix. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

None used in the preparation of this report. 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Pensions Committee : GRWP minutes 

 

29 March 2011 

 

Page 84



 

APPENDIX 1 
 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Governance and Risk Working Party  
 
Thursday 14 July 2011 
 

 
In attendance:  
 
Councillor Geoffrey C.J. Watt (WBC) 
 

Peter Wallach (Head of MPF) 
 

Councillor Mike Hornby (WBC) Paddy Dowdall (Investment Manager) 
  
Councillor Leon McGuire (SHC) Donna Smith ( Group Fund Accountant) 
  
Councillor Tom Harney (WBC) 
 

Emma Jones (PA to Head of MPF) 
 

  
  
 
1.  Apologies were received from: 
 
Councillor Ann McLachlan (WBC) 
 

Councillor Liam Robinson (LCC) 

Councillor Peter Johnson (WBC) 
 

Councillor Patrick McCarthy (Co-optee) 

Councillor Harry Smith (WBC) Councillor George Davies (WBC) 
 
Councillor Adrian Jones (WBC) 

 
Ian Coleman (Director of Finance) 

 
 
2.  Declarations of interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 22

Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 25

Page 89

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 26

Page 93

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 AUDIT COMMISSION ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT
	5 MEMBERS' TRAINING DAY
	Circular

	6 LAPFF CONFERENCE BOURNEMOUTH
	7 LGPS UPDATE
	Letter1
	Letter2
	Letter3

	8 ANNUAL EMPLOYERS' CONFERENCE
	9 BANK AND OTHER AUTHORISED SIGNATORIES
	11 PROFESSIONAL PENSIONS AWARDS
	12 TUNSGATE SQUARE SHOPPING CENTRE 'GREEN APPLE' AWARD
	16 ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - MACK TRADING
	19 GOVERNANCE & RISK WORKING PARTY MINUTES - REPORT
	22 ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - MACK TRADING - APPENDIX
	25 GOVERNANCE & RISK WORKING PARTY MINUTES - APPENDIX
	26 NON RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENTS

